RUEES OFPROCEDURE FOR THE/CITY. GOUNGHL
BITY:OF TROY; MICHIGAN Page 8

22,

23,

24,

25,

26,

27.

28,

29,

GOINCILDSCHSEION)

t

ABSENCES AT COUNGIL MEETINGS .

A. Gouncll merribers who are unable 1o attehd a Gounc) meeling and desire an excused
absence shall notify the Mayor, City Manager, City Atforney ar City Clerk of their absence
in writing prior to the meeting and ndicate the reason for the shsence. The reason shall be
entered i the proceedings of the Cauncll at the time of each absence,

B. Inthe event of an absence of a Gouncll m_e'mber at ameefing, the City Manager is directed
to supply such absent Councii member with information ebout any special mestings that
may have been scheduled. ,

SUSPEND RULES
The Rules of Procedure may be waived by & simple majotity.
|

GBS AT Cotol Shalshesi 4 secand T B an
nembers < ‘ﬂzﬂ.ﬂg;

iefibeys desliy 1o, Spek.on it iem: hiave sk, heard)No irermber.or Gourbl Shall be
@llowetifo Speakiermore harive {5 MrUtes ot 5 iiB.)
AGENDA ITEMS SUBMITTED BY COUNGIL MEMBERS

Mayor and Councll Members submitting an agenda item that calls for a vote shall send the item
to the City Manager in a timely manner in wiiting. Staff professional opinion may be written fo
accompany the item. Rule 17 would govern, limiting any presentations to 15 minutes,

VIDEQ AND AUDIO PRESENTATIONS
Video and Audio Presentations may not be submitied for presentation at & Council rmeeting

" unleds subritted to tha Troy City Cletk by noon ‘oit'the ‘day of the meefing. Inappropriate

material will be prohibited.

CONTINUED AGENDA ITEMS NOT CONSIDERED BEFORE 12:00 AM

Any itsm on the Council agenda that has not been discussed by 12:00. AM of the rnorning
following the beginning of the meeting shall ba contlnued to the next regular meefing as

- Cartyover lism, unless City Council takes action 1o the contrary.

VIOLATIONS

The Gity Clerk shall be respongible for reporting violations of fime fimitations or speaking
sequence fo the Chair,

WIRE COMMUNICATIONS BY AND TO COUNCIL MEMBERS DURING ANY
MEETING OF COUNCIL

. Al sommunications are subject to the Mishigan Open Meetings Acf, therefore rembers of fhe
City Council shall not engage in any form of wire communication, es defined by U.8. Code Tille

18, Part1, Chapter 119, Section 2510, during any mesting ofthe Counoi.

Adopted:

_-fi_te_m.uﬂggg;géeggqgsmnzuﬁﬁr; e

[P




Membets of Audience Addressing Counell

Upon the request of amember of the Coungl, o member. of the audisnce shall be parmitted o adress
the Councll et atime other than during public eommentary, unless amaority of members of Coundl
object.

Digorderly Conduct at Meetings Cy

Tha Chalr may call fo ordar any person who engagesin personal attecks, (which are unrelated to Coundil
Busingss) who usss obsoans or grossly indecent langluag;a. who spaeks longer then the allotted fime,
who digruptsthe proceedings or who otherwise vlelates,th;e rules of this Councll, Fallure to cometo
order may result in the mictophohe being shut off, fhef?rfpiit ure of any remalning speeking tims, or, gt
the request of the Chalr, expulsion from the meating.

Rarthermore, If & speaker or a member of the Qubllcduqs not fellow epplicable rules during & Coundll
mesting, dlsturbsthe peace at a Counclt mesting er endangers the safaty of the Coundll or thepublic et
a coundil meeting, that individuzl may also heve further restrictions placed upon them asnecessary,
including forfelture of thelr right to speak et or Hght to atténd futurs Coundl mestings. Such sctionsare
to be determined by Coundil and shall be consistent with the Michlgan Oen Meetings Act.

; - .

RULE &~ Voiing o :
Inell caseswhereavote lstaken, the Cheir shall dedide that result. Aroll call voto shall b called upon

tharequest of any member of the Council, Tha roll call vot ing erder shall rotate around the coundl tehle
with the Mayor vating in the rotation. "

RULEY - Nominations or Appointments to Boards, bom missions or Commiitees
Nominstions or appointments fo boards commissiens, o eommittess which require the confirmetion
or epprovel of Qouindl, shall nof be conflrmed or approved: befdre the next regular meet ing of the
Counail excspt with the consent of & of the members of thie Caungll, When requlred by ordinanca or
otherwiss desmed In the best interest of the Gy, the Cherter residency regquirement for nomination or
appoiritment of en individual o aboard, comrhisslen ar comriittes lswaived by a ressiution concurred
e by not lessthan saven membarsof Qouncil, .

ETW@?W&M&WM@‘Es;mwsi%ssﬁ%ﬁ'éﬁwg@?gﬁ’geﬁﬂ:at.#
Nomaraber shallsosslsumtieoyRERSMRRE Ry CR B etmy

Ll Trmmenbsrsalesntinseommishte tolimmustiansthendanavidpersontlatiady

oge e e e StoR i e e TR o B i)

il 56l o bl fssian el forarcayTs vt
Hiirutes OF Hlsclisgion'on e gusatlon. Upon a motion to call the pravious

questlon, sl disoussion Isended, provided that esch mermbar who hes hot yet held the floor
will have an opportunity to do so. Amotion te call the pravious quastion shell requirea
concurting vote of 8/4 of the mathbars present.

& Bectroniocommunication during Council meetingsshell pertein only to Qty matters,

PSRRI b1 512097 4 Page | 14

v s S e by e




Ruring Qouncit mestings, members shail not send private electronicoommunicationto
personsother than Gty Steff; providee hewever, that membersmay send draft motions,
resolutions, and amendmentste the Gty Qlerk who will forward them to membersof
Gaundll, Membarsshall not resporr te mamber-diéributed draft language via glectronic
communication. All draft lengusge sent by e{pctronic communication during Councl
mestingsshall bs read into the record prior to discussion by Coundll, Memberswill not send
publicly-accessible elactronic commnications (e.g: Twitter and FacaBook poste) during

mestings. '

[l Bectrortic communicetion sent and recelved ’by a thamber during a Councl meeting shall be
included in the minutes of such meeting, provided thet the minutes hall not indl ude
electronic communication recelvad by a mamier that clagriy doss not relate to the subject
metter of the mesting,

(3 Amember shall not use thelr personsl mabiédevices to answer phens callsor send
slectrenic communlcations, indluding text messages, while ssated at the Coungl] table,
Wemberswha heve & head to attend to personet business shall step away from the Cound
tebleto doso.

RULE 11 -Resolutions and Motions to Be Made In Writing

Brery resolution and ordinance shell be I writing. Resolutlon titles shall unigssimpractical or required
by law, be twenty (20) words or ess and describe in plaln langusga the subject mefter thereof. When
&y motfon hasbeen made and seconded, it shell be steted by the Chelr and shall not be withdrawn
thereafter except by consent of tha majority of the meribsrs of the Coungil present.

RULE 12 - Motion to Lay on the Table

Amptien toteble shall onlybe In order “when something else of immediata urgency has erlssn or when
somet hing elsa needs to be addressed before evnsidération of the pending question is resumed” {FRCR
Newly Revised in Brlef, p. 118) and the name of the pérson maldng the motlon snd the refionale for
tebling should gppear in the minutes. '

RUIE-13 ~Consideration of Questions
When aguestion hasbeen taken, It shall bein order for eny maemiser voting with the preveiling side to

move areconslderalion thereof & the same or the nest régular mesting; but, no question ghatl a sscond
time bareconsidered.

Agenda items - Introduction, Referral, and Approval

Ann Arbor City Council Rules 20162017  Paga | 12

- e

R I RN

PPTAY




MML

Sample Rules of Procedure

A. Regular and special meetings

All meetings of the city/village conncil will be
held in compliance with state statutes,
including the Open Meetings Act, 1976 PA 267
as amended, and with these rules.

1. Regular meetings

Regular meetings of the city/village council
will be held on of each month
beginning at pam. at the city/village
office unless otherwise rescheduled by
resolution of the council, Council meetings
shall conclude no later than p.m,
subject to extension by the council.

2. Special meetings

A special meeting shall be called by the clerk

- upon the written request of the
mayor/president or any three members of the
council on at least 24 hours’ written notice to
each member of the council served personally
or left at the councilmember’s usual place of
residence, Special meeting notices shall state
the purpose of the meeting. No official action
shall be transacted at any special meeting of
the council unless the item has heen stated in
the netice of such meeting.

3. Posting requirements for
regular
and special meetings

a. Within 10 days after the first meeting of
the council following the election, a public
notice stating the dates, times and places of
the regular monthly council meetings will
be posted at the city/village offices.
[Villages without a principal office must
post in the county clerk's office.]

b. For a rescheduled regular or a special
meeting of the council, a public notice
stating the date, time, and place of the
meeting shall be posted atleast 18 hours
before the meeting at the city/village office,
[Villages without a principal office must
post in the county clerk’s office.]

c. The notice described above is not required
for a meeting of the council in emergency
session inthe event of a severe and
imminent threat to the health, safety or
welfare of the public when two-thirds of
the members of the council determine that
delay would be detrimental to the village's
efforts in responding to the threat,

{The Michigan Open Meetings Act requires
that copies of the notice of public meetings be
provided by first-class mail upon request and
payment of a reasonable yearly fee for the
costs of printing and postage. Section d. could
be added here to indicate the fee determined
by the councll for these costs,]

4. Minutes of regular and
special meetings

The clerk shall attend the council meetings
and record all the proceedings and
resolutions of the council in accordance with
[Section 64.5 of the General Law Village Act of
1895 as amended and] the Open Meetings Act.
In the absence of the clerk, the counci] may
appoint one of its own members or another
person to temporarily perform the clerk’s
duties,



Within 15 days of a council meeting a
synopsis showling the substance of each
separate decision of the councii or the
entirety of the council proceedings shall be
prepared by the clerk and shall indicate the
vote of the councilmiembers. After the
mayor/president approves this document, it
shall be published in a newspaper of general
circulation in the city/village or posted in
three public places in the city/village.

A copy of the minutes of each regular or
special council meeting shall be available for
public inspection at the village offices during
regular business hours.

5. Study sessions

Upon the call of the mayor/president or the
council and with appropriate notice to the
councilmembers and to the public, the council
may convene a work session devoted
exclusively to the exchange of information
relating to municipal affairs. No votes shall be
taken on any matters under discussion nor
shall any councilmember enter into a formal
commitment with another member regarding
a vote to be taken subsequently.

B. Conduct of meetings

1. Meetings to be public

All regular and special meetings of the council
shall be open to the public, and citizens shall
have a reasonable opportunity to be heard in
accordance with such rules and regulations as
the counci! may determine, except that the
meetings may be closed to the public and the
media in accordance with the Open Meetings
Act,

All official meetings of the council and its
committees shall be open to the media, freely
subject to recording by radio, television and
photographic services at any time, provided
that such arrangements do not interfere with
the orderly conduct of the meetings.

2, Agenda preparation

An agenda for each regular council meeting
shall be prepared by the mayor/president
with the following order of business:

a, Call to order and roll call of council

b. Public hearings on ordinances under
consideration

c. Brief public comment on agenda items
d. Approval of consent agenda

e. Approval of regular agenda

£ Approval of councl! minutes

g Submission of bills

h. Communications to the council

L Reports from council committees

j. Reports from officers as scheduled,
&g manager, attorney, etc,

k. Unfinished business
. New business

m. Announcements

n. Adjournment

Any councilmember shall have the right to
add items to the regular agenda before it is
approved.

3. Consent agenda

A consent agenda may be used to allow the
council to act on numerous administrative or
noncontroversial items at one time. Included
on this agenda can be noncontroversial
matters such as approval of minutes, payment
of bills, approval of recognition resolutions,
etc. Upon request by any member of the
council, an item shall be removed from the
consent agenda and placed on the regular
agenda for discussion,

4, Agenda distribution

{This section should explain when and how
councilmembers will receive their agendas,]



5. Quorum

A majority of the entire elected or appointed
and sworn members of the council shalt
constitute a quorum for the transaction of
business at all council meetings. In the
absence of a quorum, a lesser number may
adjourn any meeting to a later time or date
with appropriate public notice,

6. Attendance at council
meetings

Election to the city/village council is a
privilege freely sought by the nominee, It
carries with it the responsibility to participate
in council activities and represent the
residents of the city/village. Attendance at
council meetings is critical to fulfilling this
responsibility. A general law village council is
empowered by Section 65.5 of the General
Law Village Actas amended to adjourn a
meeting if a quorum is not present and
compel attendance in a manner prescribed by
its ordinance.

The council may excuse absences for cause.
If a councilmember has more than three
unexcused successive absences for regular or
special council meetings, the council may
enact a resolution of reprimand. In the event
that the member’s absences continue for more
than three additional successive regular or
special meetings of the council, the council
may enact a resolution of censure or request
the councilmember's resignation or both.

7. Presiding officer

The presiding officer shall be responsible for
enforcing these rules of procedure and for
enforcing orderly conduct at meetings. The
mayor/president is ordinarily the presiding
officer. The council shall appoint one of its
members mayor/president pro tempore, who
shall preside in the absence of the president.
In the absence of both the mayor/president
and the mayor/president pro tempore, the
member present who has the longest
consecutive service on the counci] shall
preside,

8. Disorderly conduct

The mayor/president may cail to order any
person who is being disorderly by speaking
out of order or otherwise disrupting the
proceedings, failing to be germane, speaking
longer than the allotted time or speaking
vulgarities, Such person shall be seated untii
the chair determines whether the person is in
order.

If the person so engaged in presentation is
called out of order, he or she shall not be
permitted to continue to speak at the same
meeting except by special leave of the council.
If the person shall continue to be disorderly
and disrupt the meeting, the chair may order
the sergeant at arms to remove the person
from the meeting. No person shall be removed
from a public meeting except for an actual
breach of the peace committed at the meeting,

[Itis suggested that there be an ordinance
governing disruption of public meetings,
prepared with advice of the municipal
attorney and the municipal liability insurance
carrier on the risks, limits and force allowed
to eject members, This ordinance should
stipulate the procedure to be followed and the
resource to be used for the sergeant-at-arms
function, e.g. local police, county sheriff, etc.
By planning in advance how to handle
attempted disruptions, you can keep the
meeting in order.]

C. Closed meetings

1. Purpose

Closed meetings may be held only for the
reasons authorized in the Open Meetings Act,
which are the following:

a, To consider the dismissal, suspension, or
disciplining of, or to hear complaints or
charges brought against a public officer,
employee, staff member or individual agent
when the named person requests a closed
meeting,

b. For strategy and negotiation sessions
connected with the negotiation of a
collective bargaining agreement when
either negotiating party requests a closed
hearing.

¢. To consider the purchase or lease of real



property up to the time an option to
purchase or lease that real property is
obtained.

d. To consult with the municipal attorney or
another attorney regarding trial or
settlement strategy in connection with
specific pending litigation, but only when
an open meeting would have a detrimental
financial effect on the litigating or
settlement position of the council,

e. Toreview the specific contents of an
application for employment or
appointment to a public office when a
candidate requests that the application
remain confidential. However, all
interviews by a public body for
employment or appointment to a public
office shall be held in an open meeting,

f. Toconsider material exempt from
discussion or disclosure by state or federal
statute,

2, Calling closed meetings

Ata regular or special meeting, the
councilmembers, elected or appointed and
serving, by a two-thirds roll call vote may call
a closed session under the conditions outlined
inSection C.1 of the Open Meetings Act. The
roll call vote and purpose(s) for calling the
closed meeting shall be entered into the
minutes of the public part of the meeting at
which the vote is taken.

3. Minutes of closed meetings

A separate set of minutes shall be taken by the
clerk or the designated secretary of the
council at the closed session, These minutes
will be retained by the clerk, shall not be
available to the public, and shall only be
disclosed if required by a civil action, as
authorized by the Michigan Open Meetings
Act. These minutes may be destroyed one
year and one day after approval of the
minutes of the regular meeting at which the
closed session was approved. .

D. Discussionand voting

1. Rules of parliamentary
procedure

The rules of parliamentary practice as
contained in the latest edition of [Robert's
Rules of Qrder or an alternative source of
procedural rules] shall govern the council in
all cases to which they are applicable,
provided that they are not in conflict with
these rules, city/village ordinances or
applicable state statutes. The
mayor/president may appoint a
parliamentarfan.

The chair shall preserve order and
decorum and may speak to points of order in
preference to other council-members. The
chair shall decide all questions arising under
this parliamentary authority, subject to appeal
and reversal by a majority of the
councilmembers present.

Any member may appeal to the council a
ruling of the presiding officer. If the appeal {s
seconded, the member making the appeal may
briefly state the reason for the appeal and the
presiding officer may briefly state the ruling.
There shall be no debate on the appeal and no
other member shall participate in the
discussion, The question shall be, “Shall the
decision of the chair be sustained?” If the
majority of the members present vote “aye,”
the ruling of the chair is sustained; otherwise
itis overruled,

2. Conduct of discussion

During the couneil discussion and debate, no
member shall speak until recognized for that
purpose by the chair. After such recognition,
the member shall confine discussion to the
question at hand and to its merits and shall
not be interrupted except by a point of order
or privilege raised by another member,
Speakers should address their remarks to the
chair, maintain a courteous tone and avoid
Interjecting a personal note into debate,

No member shall speak more than once on
the same question unless every member
desiring to speak to that question shall have
had the opportunity to do so.



The chair, at his or her discretion and
subject to the appeal process mentioned in
Section: D.1., may permit any person to
address the council during its deliberations.

3. Ordinances and resolutions

No ordinance, except ai appropriation
ordinance, an ordinance adopting or
embodying an administrative or
governmental code or an ordinance adopting
a code of ordinances, shall relate to more than
one subject, and that subject shall be clearly
stated in its title.

A vote on all ordinances and resolutions
shall be taken by a roll call votz and entered in
the minutes unless it is a unanimous vote. If
the vote is unanimous, it shall be necessary
only to so state in the minutes, unless a roll
call vote is required by law or by council rules,

4, Rollcall

[n allroll call votes, the names of the members
of the council shall be called in alphabetical
order. [Names may be called with all names in
alphabetical order or alphabetical order with
the president voting last or the council may
select another system.]

5. Duty to vote

Election to a deliberative body carries with it
the obligation to vote. Councilmembers
present at a council meeting shall vote on
every matter before the body, unless
otherwise excused or prohibited from voting
by law. A councilmember who Is present and
abstaing or does not respond to a roll call vote
shall be counted as voting with the prevailing
side and shall be so recorded, unless
otherwise excused or prohibited by law from
voting. _
Conflict of interest, as defined by law, shall
be the sole reason for a member to abstain
from voting. The opinion of the city/village
attorney shall be binding on the council with
respect to the existence of a conflict of
interest. A vote may be tabled, if necessary, to
obtain the opinion of the city/village attorney.

The right to vote Is limited to the members
of council present at the time the vote is
taken, Voting by proxy or by telephone is not
permitted. '

Al! votes must be held and determined in
public; no secret ballots are permitted.

6. Results of voting

In all cases where a vote is taken, the chair
shall declare the result,

It shall be in order for any councilmember
voting in the majority to move fora
reconsideration of the vote on any question at
that meeting or at the next succeeding
meeting of the council, When a motion to
reconsider fails, if cannot be renewed.

E. Citizen participation

1. General

Each regular council meeting agenda shall
provide for reserved time for audience
participation,

If requested by a member of the council,
the presiding officer shall have discretion to
allow a member of the audience to speak at
times other than reserved time for audience
participation.

2. Length of presentation

Any person who addresses the council during
a council meeting or public hearing shall be
limited to minutes in length per
individual presentation. The clerk will
maintain the official time and notify the
speakers when thelr time is up.

3. Addressing the council

When a person addresses the council, he or
she shall state his or her name and home
address, Remarks should be confined to the
question at hand and addressed to the chair in
a courteous tone. No person shall have the
right to speak more than once on any
particular subject until all other persons
wishing to be heard on that subject have had
the opportunity to speak.



F. Miscellaneous

1. Adoption and amendment of
rules of procedure ‘

These rules of procedure of the councll will be
placed on the agenda of the first meeting of
the council following the seating of the newly
elected councilmembers for review and
adoption, A copy of the rules adopted shall be
distributed to each counciimember.

The council may alter or amend its rules at
any time by a vote of a majority of its
members after notice has been given of the
proposed alteration or amendment,

2. Suspension of rules

The rules of the council may be suspended for
a specified portion of a meeting by an
affirmative vote of

two-thirds of the members present except
that council actions shall conform to state
statutes and to the

Michigan and the United States Constitutions,

3. Bid awards

Bids will be awarded by the council during
regular or special meetings. A bid award may
be made at a special meeting of council if that
action is announced in the notice of the
special meeting,

4, Committees

a. Standing and special committees of
council

The city/village shall have the following
standing committees:

[Committees should be listed by name and
with a deftnition of their purposes and
scopes.]

Committee members will be appointed by
the mayor/president. They shall be members
of the council. The mayor/president shall fill
ahy committee vacancies. The committee
member shall serve for a term of one year and
may be re-appointed.

Spectal committees may be established for
a specific period of time by the
mayor/president or by a resolution of the
council which specifies the task of the special
committee and the date ofits dissolution,

b. Citizen task forces

Citizen task forces may be established by a
resolution of the council which specifies the
task to be accomplished and the date of its
dissolution. Members of such committees will
be appointed by the mayor/president, subject
to approval by a majority vote of the council
and must be residents of the city/fvillage.,
Vacancies will be filled by majority vote of the
council in the same way appointments are
made.

5. Authorization for contacting
the city/village attorney
The following officials (by title) are

authorized to contact the city/village attorney
regarding municlpal matters:




o R R AANA b e s 41 L e ae e s e AP







Council members shall have.the right to-add ftems'to thie regular
agenda before it is-approved, However, € figribers are
encouraged to coptact the City Manager before the meeting withifems
they wolild like added to.the agenda. The additional of any item;
by-eouneil or staff, that includes an expenditure of fands that is not in
the approved fiscal year or that may put the City in and adverse
finangial-situation, may big-préséntad for distussion, but.dpproval may
be delayed until the next:reguiar council meeting.

. Consent Agenda

Council may use a consent agenda to sliow the Counell to &gt &n
numerous administrative.or non-gontroversial items af one: time. ftems that
couid be included on this agenda inglude non-conifoversiall matters such
as approval of minutes; payment of bills, approval of resogrition
resalutions; etc: Any member of Gouncil may request that an item be.
remaved from the consent agenda-and placed on the regular agenda for
discussion.

4. Agenda Distribution

The Clatk or hisiher desigries shiall distribute Couneil Agendas to the
following:

. Quorum.

Four members. of the Council shall constitute:a quorum for-the fransaction
of busiriegs’at all Coiiiicil Meétinigs. In'the-absence of @ qifori, a lesser
nurmber may adjourn any meeting to a later-time or date with appropriate
public notice.

; Presiding Officer

The: presiding officer shall be responsible for enfording these rlés of
procedure-arid for enforcing orderly conduct at meetings (and may-appoint
a sergeant at:arms). The:Mayor is ordinarily the.presiding officer. Thie City
Council shall appoint-one of its members Mayor pro tempore, who shall
preside in the absence of the: Mayor. In'the-absence of both the Mayor.and
Mayor-pro tem, the Council shall appoint orie:of its: members to preside.



¥ Sergeantat Arms

appolited the sergeant at-arms: for-all Gity: Council













& Results of Voting

In all:cases where:a voteHis faken, fhis Ghalr shiall desiare:the results.







R it . L

10



BOARD OF THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF WEST BLOOMFIELD |

BUDGET MEETING
Monday, December 4, 2017, B

4550 Walnut Lake Road
West Bloomfield, Ml 48323
Telephone: (248) 451-4848
_ Debbie Binder
Website: www.wbtownship.org Township Clerk

BOARDROOM

1. CALL TO ORDER
2. ROLLCALL
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
5. PUBLIC COMMENT (non-agenda related items - 2 minutes per speaker)

8. APPROVAL of Proctamation, in Memoriam, Honoring the Life of Morris Margulies, West Bloomficld Real
Estate Developer

7. BUDGET PRESENTATION 48" District Court

. 8. BUDGETITEMS

A. Presentation and Review of Pension
B. Review of Retiree Health Care

C. Review of Grant Funds

9. PUBLIC HEARING regarding Proposed 2018 Budget
A. 2018 Budget
B. General Appropriations Act
C. Special Appropriations Act

10. APPROVAL of 2017 Projected Budget as the 2017 Amended Budget




Agenda - Board of the Charter Township of West Bloomfield Page 2
Budget Meeting — Monday, December 4, 2017, 6:00 p.m.

11. CONSENT AGENDA
A. Approval of Minutes — Regular Meeting — Monday, November 20, 2017
B. Approval of [ntroduction of Ordinance No, C-754-B, Marihuana Enterprises, Businesses, and
Facilities, an Ordinance to Amend the Code of Ordinances, Chapter 2, Administration, Article VII,
Moratoriums, Division 1, Marihuana Enterprises Businesses, and Facllities, Section 2-303, to Extend
the Moratorium on Medical Marihuana Enterprises, Businesses, and Facilities

12. PUBLIC COMMENT (non-agenda related ftems - 2 minutes per speaker)

13. ADJOURNMENT




~ City of Brighton, Michigan - City Council Meeting Rules of Procedure http:/Awww.brightoneity.org/Government/City-Council-Meeting-Rules...

e Government

* Agendas & Minutes
® Boards & Commissions
¢ City Council
¢ (ity Council Agenda Hem Request
¢ City Council Feedback Form
¢ City Council Meeting Inquiry/Input Form
* City Council Meeting Rules of Procedure
s City Council Meeting Video
¢ Code of Ordinances
¢ Zohing Ordinance
© o City Charter
e City, Village, and Township Revenue Sharing Program
¢ Links of Interest
* Meeting Dates

City Council Meeting Rules of Procedure

Brighton City Counch Meeting Rules of Procedure
Officlally adopted by the Brighton City Council on August 7, 2008

INTRODUCTION:
It is the purpose of these City Council Meeting and Call to the Public Rules of
Procedure to encourage public participation in an orderly manner which gives
everyone a reasonable opportunity to present his or her point of view for
consideration by the City Council. The public is Invited to speak on issues before
the City Council during scheduled public hearings and during the cali to the
public. ltems on the agenda or other topics can be addressed during call to the
Eublic. The call to the public is not for the purpose of conducting a debate
etween the City Council and citizens. Cltizen's questions will be answered
immediately in the call to the public in which the question is asked if they can be
answered immediately. If a question cannot be answered immediately/quickly,
then the City Council wili defer answering the question until later in the City
Council Meeting after the call to the public or to a future City Council meeting.

Individuals may request that an item be placed on the City Council agenda by
submitting the request in writing or on a City Councii Agenda item Request Form,
The request will be submitted to the City Council for consideration. Individuals
may also request that an item be placed on the agenda by contacting a member
of the City Councll or by speaking to the item during the call to the public at a
regularly scheduled City Council meeting.

If your presentation concerns a specific complaint or suggestion, you may find it
more convenient and may receive faster service if Kou call the ap(fropriate City
Department during regular business hours. If you have contacted the Department
and for some reason results were not satisfactory, please call the Department
Director or the City Manager's office. A time limit Is established to be sure that
everyone has an opportunity to s[)eak and that presentations do not become
repetitious. While the City Council wishes to give everyone an opportunity to
express his or her point of View, it is neither necessary nor advisable for every
member of a group to address the City Council. In those cases where a group is in
attendance, it is suggested that one or two spokespersons be seiected. The City
Council attempts to make informed decisions based on alt the information
available rather than simply based upon the number of people who offer the
same information or arguments,

10f2 ' 2/5/2018, 1:50 PM



‘ City of Brighton, Michigan - City Council Meeting Rules of Procedure htip://www.brightoncity. org/ Govemment/City-Council-Meeting-Rules...

" RULES OF PROCEDURE

1. The Council will conduct two (2) calls to the public, one at the beginning of the
meeting and one at the end of the meeting, On both occaslons, the public will
be able to speak on items that are or are not on the agenda.

2. An Individual shall not address the City Council without first having been
- recognized by the-Mayor,

3. Upon being recognized, the individual should proceed to the front of the room
to use the microphone and state his or her full name (providing an accurate
spelling), residential address, and the topic to be discussed.

4. Speakers shall be limited to a presentation of five minutes unless such petiod
of time is extended by a vote of the City Councll.

5, An individual will not be given an opporfunlty to speak a second time on the
same issue until all others wishing to make a presentation on the subject have
had an opportunity to do so.

6. Sign In sheets will be used at the discretion of the Mayor. If a sign in sheet is
being utilized, members of the public wishing to speak must complete their
name, address and the topic or agenda item, which they intend to speak on.
Sign in sheets will be available near the agenda hox. Sign in sheets must be
given to the Clerk prior to the first call to the public.

7. When a person(s) becomes unruly as determined by the Mayor in the role as
the Chairperson of the City Council Meeting, the Mayor may declare said
person(s) In the audience to be out of order and if necessary, may rule that the
individual(s) has forfeited the opportunity to speak further. A person(s) may be
excluded from the meeting for breach of the peace committed at the meeting.
Clapping and cheering are inappropriate.

8. These Rules of Procedure are intended to supplement Robert's Rules of Order
which have been adopted by the City Council. Where inconsistencies or
conflict may exist between these Rules of Procedure and Robert's Rules of

Order, these Rules of Procedure shall prevail, _
powerat by IUIGRIE™
-dovolopmentby  # iliiTaha

20f2 2/5/2018, 1:50 PM



i

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA
City Council Chambers, Lower Level - 7:00 P.M.
611 E. Grand River, Howell, M1 43843

Visit the City of Howell website at www.cityofhowell.org

COUNCLL -
MANAGER
GOVERNMENT

Council members and

other officials normally

in attendancs:

1. Dennis L. Perkins
City Attornay

2. Jan Lobur
Council Member

3. Andrew Yost,
Council Member

4, Michas] Mulvahill
Council Member

3. Shea Charles
City Manager

6. Nick Proctor,
Mayor

7. Jane Cartwright
City Clerk

§. Scott Niblock
Council Member

9. Bob Ellis,
Councif Member

3. Steven L. Manor
Mayor Pro Tem

SEATING:

Above list arranged
according to seating
order; left to right,

Monday, January 8, 2018

. Regular Meeting Called to Qrder

. Pledge of Allegiance (all stand)

. Approve Minutes — Regular Meeting held December 18, 2017
. Citizens’ Comments (items not on agenda)

. Reports by Council Members Serving on Commissions

. Council Correspondence:

. Discussion/Approval — 2018 Agreement for Collsction of Summer School

Property Taxes

. Award Bids/Purchases:

A. GPS/GIS Data Collector Unit, Leica Geosysterns, $12,878.20
B, DPS Complex, Envision Construction Services, $282,900

. Approve payment of bills ending 01/08/2018 in the amount of $641,464.04 and

payroll to cover the period ending 01/20/2018

10. City Manager’s Report:

A, Schedule Annual Goals/Objectives Retreat

11, O1d Buginess
12, New Business

13. Adjournment

Visitors are cordially invited to attend all meetings of the Council.

Ifyou wish to address the Council, you will be recognized by the Mayor.

Please refer to the printed guidelines on the back of the ngenda.



January 8, 2018

Public Comment Guidelines
Members of the public are permitted to address a meeting of Council upon recognition by the Mayor. Each
person shail begin by stating their name and address and shall be permitted to speak once on each agenda item for three
(3) minutes. Agenda item 4 allows for Citizens’ Comments on any non-agenda item. Where the Agenda provides Public
Hearing comment, each person addressing the Council shall be limited to five (5) minutes regarding the specific agenda
Public Hearing item. The Mayor may allow additional time at his/her discretion,

All remarks shall be addressed to the Council as a body, and not to any member. No person, other than members
of the Council and the person having the floor, shall be permitted to enter into any discussion, either direetly or through
the members of the Council. No questions shall be asked the Council Members, except through the Mayor, Any person
making personal, impertinent or slanderous remarks, or who shall become boisterous, while addressing the Council, may
be requested to leave the lectern.

Interested parties, or their authorized representatives, may address the Council by written communication in
regard to any matter concerning the City’s business or over which the Council has control at anytime by direct mail or by
addressing the City Clerk, and copies will be distributed to Council Members,



City of Southgate COUNCIL RULES AND PROCEDURES http://southgatemi.org/userfiles/myadmin/rules.htrm

Gy of Dhuthgare

COUNCI, RULES AND PROCEDURES

L.

2,

3.

Meetings shall open with Pledge of Allegiance,
The order of roll call shall be rotated.

Maiters referred to an ad hoc (impromptu or informal) committee shall appear on the next meeting’s agenda

unless otherwise specified.

4,

3.

10.

11.

12,

13.

14,

1of2

Officials shall be referred to by their respective titles.
Only persons rocognized by the Chair shall be noted in the minutes.

Individuals and organizations acknowledged by the Chair under Persons In The Audience — Scheduled and
Unscheduled, may address the City Council one time only at the same meeling and will be afforded a two (2)

minute time limit. The time limit may be extended at the discretion of the Chair.

Persons addressing the Council will maintain a proper decorum in the Council Chambers. The use of vulgat,
obscene, threatening or ofherwise inappropriate language or gestures shall result in a verbal warning and/or
gjection from the Council Chambers af the discretion of the Chair.

The deadline for matters (inchiding communications) to appear on the agenda shall be Thursday at 4:00 P.M.
prior to the Council meeting. This shall alse apply to Council members. Those people desiring to be placed
on the egenda shall state in writing their reasons and the subject matter to be presented.

All communications requiring Council action shall be listed and read under “Communications A™; all others
shall be listed under “Communications B” and read only if required.

All Council members shall receive copies of all communications with the tentative agenda. The
agenda shall be a.vai]able to the members on the Friday prior to the regular meeting.
Meetings are to be conducted according to rules of Parliamentary Procedure, as outlined in
“Parliamantary Procedure at a Glance™ by O. Garfield Jones.
All Council members are to be notified of any commission/committee meetings.
The City Aﬁornéy shall act as Parliamentarian and Sergeant-At-Arms o the Council,

Ta reconsider a motion, the following procedure applies:

2) Only a Councit member who voted with the prevailing side may bting a motion to

reconsider, but the motion to reconsider may be seconded by any Council member,

b) A motion to reconsider must either be made af the same meeting as the motion sought to be
reconsidered, or, if the City Clerk is notified within seventy-two (72) houss after said meeting,
the motion to reconsider shall be placed on the agenda for the next scheduled Council meeting.

¢) If a majority of the Council votes in favor of the motion to reconsider, the motion sought to

be reconsidered shall then be independently voted upon by the Council,

12/1/2015 5:58 PM



City of Southgate COUNCIL RULES AND PROCEDURES htip ://souﬂlgatemi.org/userﬁles/myadmin/rules.hﬁn

d) Motions shall not be reconsidered twice.

15. Changing a vote:

a) Any individual Council member may change his or her vote up to the time the vote is

announced. After that he or she can make the change only with the permission of the Council, If no
Council member objects, the change may be made. If an objection is raised, a motion may be made to
allow the change, which motion is undebatable. A majority vote is necessary to adopt the motion and
allow the change.

b} A motion to allow a Council member to change his or her vote must be made either at the
same meeting as the vote sought to be changed, or, if the City Clerk is notified within
seventy- two (72) hours of said meeting. The motion to allow a vote to be changed shall be

placed on the agenda of the next scheduled Council meeting.

16. Emergency Expenditures:

a) Whenever an emergency expenditure is required, the matter shall first be referred to the Finance Director for
pertinent information and written recommendation as to where the money

b) When other matters requiring emergency polling of the Council result, an attempt will be made to contact
all members within a six-hour time frame. After the six-hour time frams, the results will be finalized. The
results will be provided to Council members as soon as possible afterwards.

17. Ordinances:

a) All ordinances which amend classifications of land (rezoning) and are recommended forapprovai by the
Plan Commission after a public hearing, shall be forwarded to the next appropriate regular meeting of the Council for
the first reading. A workshop session will be scheduled prior to the regular meeting in order to address specific

Council questicns.

b) All other proposed ordinances, including zoning ordinance amendments, shall be placed on a workshop
agenda for consideration by Council, prior to the first reading at a regular Council meeting,

¢) In the event the City Administrator deems a proposed ordinance requires immediate attention, the
proposed ordinance may be placed on the next Council agenda for consideration by the Council,

d) Ordinances shall be introduced at one meeting and adopted at the following meeting. In the event the
Council desms it necessary to immediately adopt an ordinance, the ordinance may be infroduced and adopted at the

same meeting.

¢) If practical, ordinances shall be read once in their entirety. Otherwise, ordinances may be read by title
only, '

18. At any time during the effective period of these “Rules of Procedure”, the Council may amend such rules
and regulations by a majority vote.

Revised: December 3, 2003

' of 2 12/1/2015 5:58 PM



AGENDA NOTE

New Business Item #

MEETING DATE: March 12, 2018
PERSON PLACING ITEM ON AGENDA:
AGENDA TOPIC: Consider Setting Tax Abatement Application Fee

EXPLANATION OF TOPIC: The Council soon will be asked to consider establishing an
industrial development district which is a threshold requirement to approving an application for an
industrial facilities tax exemption certificate (industrial tax abatement) under Public Act 198 of
1974 (the "Act"). The Act allows the City to charge applicants a fee to cover various costs
including: publishing notice of public hearings in the newspaper, mailing certified notice of public
hearing, staff review, etc. The application fee shall not exceed the actual cost incurred by the City
in processing the application or 2% of the total property taxes abated under the Act for the term
the abatement is in effect, whichever is less, and this is the only fee the City is allowed to charge
an applicant under the Act.

The IFTEC application fee charged by other communities ranges widely. Some charge only
several hundred dollars while others charge as much as $1,500, and others require an amount to
be deposited in escrow and the actual costs are charged against those funds, and any unused funds
returned to the applicant.

In anticipation of an application for an IFTEC, Council should establish an application fee.

MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:
o Act 198 of 1974
¢ MEDC Summary of PA 198
o FAQ Industrial Facilities Exemption PA 198 — Michigan Department of Treasury

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Approve/Deny/No Action/Postpone

RECOMMENDATION:  Approve a tax abatement application fee consistent with Public Act
198 of 1974 and require applicants to deposit funds in an amount set by Council and that costs
associated with processing the application will be paid from the deposited funds, and any unused
portion will be returned to the applicant.

SUGGESTED MOTION: Motion to approve a tax abatement application fee consistent with
Public Act 198 of 1974 and require applicants to deposit $ with the City and
that costs associated with processing the application will be paid from the deposited funds, and
any unused portion will be returned to the applicant, and that this application fee be included on
the City's Fee Schedule.




Lisa Deaton

N ]
From: Timothy Wilhelm <twilhelm@jrsjlaw.com>
Sent: Thursday, March 8, 2018 1:39 PM
To: Lloyd Collins
Cc: Lisa Deaton; Robert Donohue
Subject: South Lyon - Tax Abatement - agenda information
Attachments: 2018-03-12 Agenda Note - tax abatement application fee.docx; 2018-03-12 Agenda

Note to set PH for Superb Fab tax abatement request.docx

Lloyd

Attached are two agenda notes for setting the tax abatement application fee and setting a public hearing on superb’s
request to establish an IDD. Please read through these and make sure you are comfortable with the recommendations.

On the superb application, | spoke with Mary Ritchie at OCE and she indicated that OCE will review the tax abatement
policy {to be revised and forwarded) and assist the Council on this matter. She indicated OCE can, if the city wants, help
the City to establish a scale or scoring table for evaluating the value of investment as a criteria. She and | also discussed
the past IFT approved (both to MST in 2012 and 2014). Thus, the tax abatement policy is not yet ready to present to
Council. And, based on that, these issues are all somewhat inter-related, and | have no problem with having these two
agenda items postponed until all 3 things can be addressed at the same time. But, | do not see any problem with
proceeding on the two items either. |just want to make sure that if a public hearing is set — it is set out far enough to
allow the City, and OCE, to review and adopt a tax abatement policy.

Mary OCE indicated that if a district is established, the State has been forcing communities to approve an abatement of
at least 1 year. This appears to be contrary to the Act which clearly provides the City with discretion to disapprove an
application even if a district is created. But, nonetheless, this is the type of concern | raised previously — creating a
district and then denying the abatement application looks like bad business. So, if the Council is not interested in
approving an abatement, then it should not create a district. And the converse should be made clear, if it creates the
district, it should approve an abatement for at least 1 year.

| would appreciate any assistance you can provide in making sure Council is aware of this information when it considers
the two agenda items on this matter.

Timothy S. Wilhelm

Johnson, Rosati, Schultz & Jeppich, P.C.
27555 Executive Drive, Suite 250
Farmington Hills, M1 48331

Phone: (248} 489-4100; Fax: {248) 483-1726
Email: twilhelm@irsjlaw.com

Website: www.jrsilaw.com

The information contained in this communication is intended for the use of the recipient named above and contains confidential and legalty privileged information. If
the reader of this communication is not the intended recipient, de not read, copy, disseminate or distribute it. You are hereby notified that any dissemination,
distribution, or copying of this communication, or any of its contents, is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please re-send this
communication 1o the sender and delete the criginal message and any copy of it from your computer system. If you need any additional information, piease contact
the sender at (248} 489-4106. Thank you.



PLANT REHABILITATION AND INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT DISTRICTS
Act 198 of 1974

AN ACT to provide for the establishment of plant rehabilitation districts and industrial development
districts in local governmental units; to provide for the exemption from certain taxes; to levy and collect a
specific tax upon the owners of certain facilities; to impose and provide for the disposition of an
administrative fee; to provide for the disposition of the tax; to provide for the obtaining and transferring of an
exemption certificate and to prescribe the contents of those certificates; to prescribe the powers and duties of
the state tax commission and certain officers of local governmental units; and to provide penalties.

History: 1974, Act 198, Imd. Eff. July 9, 1974:—Am. 2001, Act 157, Imd. Eff. Nov. 6, 2001.
Popular name: Act 198

The People of the State of Michigan enact:

207.551 Meanings of certain words and phrases.

Sec. 1. The words and phrases defined in sections 2 and 3 have the meanings respectively ascribed to them
for the purposes of this act.

History: 1974, Act 198, Imd. Eff. July 9, 1974,

Compiler's note: For transter of powers and duties of department of commerce under Act 198 of 1974 to the chief executive officer
of the Michigan jobs commission, see E.R.O. No. 1994-8, compiled at MCL 408.47 of the Michigan Compiled Laws.

Popular name: Act 198

207.552 Definitions.

Sec. 2. (1) "Commission" means the state tax commission created by 1927 PA 360, MCL 209.101 to
209.107.

(2) "Facility” means either a replacement facility, a new facility, or, if applicable by its usage, a speculative
building.

(3) "Next Michigan development corporation” means that term as defined in section 3 of the next Michigan
development act, 2010 PA 275, MCL 125.2953.

(4) "Replacement facility” means 1 of the following:

(a) In the case of a replacement or restoration that occurs on the same or contiguous land as that which is
replaced or restored, industrial property that is or is to be acquired, constructed, altered, or installed for the
purpose of replacement or restoration of obsclete industrial property together with any part of the cld altered
property that remains for use as industrial property after the replacement, restoration, or alteration.

(b) In the case of construction on vacant noncontignous land, property that is or will be used as industrial
property that is or is to be acquired, constructed, transferred, or installed for the purpose of being substituted
for obsolete industrial property if the obsolete industrial property is situated in a plant rehabilitation district in
the same city, village, or township as the land on which the facility is or is to be constructed and includes the
obsolete industrial property itself until the time as the substituted facility is completed.

(5) "New facility" means new industrial property other than a replacement facility fo be built in a plant
rehabilitation district or industrial development district.

{6) "Local governmental unit” means a city, village, township, or next Michigan development corporation
located in this state. For purposes of this act, if a next Michigan development corporation establishes a plant
rehabilitation district or an industrial development district, the next Michigan development corporation shall
act as the local governmental unit in establishing and operating the plant rchabilitation district or the industrial
development district.

(7) "Industrial property" means land improvements, buildings, structures, and other real property, and
machinery, equipment, furniture, and fixtures or any part or accessory whether completed or in the process of
construction comprising an integrated whole, the primary purpose and use of which is the engaging in a
high-technology activity, operation of a strategic response center, operation of a motorsports entertainment
comiplex, operation of a logistical optimization center, operation of qualified commercial activity, operation of
a major distribution and logistics facility, the manufacture of goods or materials, creation or synthesis of
biodiesel fuel, or the processing of goods and materials by physical or chemical change; property acquired,
constructed, altered, or installed due to the passage of proposal A in 1976; the operation of a hydro-electric
dam by a private company other than a public utility; or agricultural processing facilities. Industrial property
includes facilities related to a manufacturing operation under the same ownership, including, but not limited
to, office, engineering, research and development, warchousing, or parts distribution facilities. Industrial
property also includes research and development laboratories of companies other than those companies that
Rendered Wednesday, March 7, 2018 Page 1 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 40 of 2018

© Legisiative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www. legisiature.mi gov



manufacture the products developed from their research activities and research development laboratories of a
manufacturing company that are unrelated to the products of the company. For applications approved by the
legislative body of a local governmental unit between June 30, 1999 and December 31, 2007, industrial
property also includes an electric generating plant that is not owned by a local unit of government, including,
but not limited to, an electric generating plant fueled by biomass. For an industrial development district
created before July 1, 2010, industrial property also includes an clectric generating plant that is fueled by
biomass that is not owned by a unit of local government if the electric generating plant involves the reuse of a
federal superfund site remediated by the United States environmental protection agency and an independent
study has concluded that the electric generating plant would not have an adverse effect on wood supply of the
area from which the wood supply of the electric generating plant would be derived. An electric generating
plant described in the preceding sentence is presumed not to have an adverse impact on the wood supply of
the area from which the wood supply of the electric generating plant would be derived if the company has a
study funded by the United States department of energy and managed by the department of energy, labor, and
economic growth that concludes that the electric generating plant will consume not more than 7.5% of the
annual wood growth within a 60-mile radius of the electric generating plant. Industrial property also includes
convention and trade centers in which construction begins not later than December 31, 2010 and is over
250,000 square feet in size or, if located in a county with a population of more than 750,000 and less than
1,100,000, is over 100,000 square feet in size or, if located in a county with a population of more than 26,000
and less than 28,000, is over 30,000 square feet in size, Industrial property also includes a federal reserve
bank operating under 12 USC 341, located in a city with a population of 600,000 or more. Industrial property
may be owned or leased, However, in the case of leased property, the lessee is liable for payment of ad
valorem property taxes and shall furnish proof of that liability. For purposes of a local governmental unit that
is a next Michigan development corporation, industrial property includes only property used in the operation
of an eligible next Michigan business, as that term is defined in section 3 of the Michigan economic growth
authority act, 1995 PA 24, MCL 207.803. Industrial property does not include any of the following:

(a) Land.

(b) Property of a public utility other than an electric generating plant that is not owned by a local unit of
government as provided in this subsection.

{c¢) Inventory.

{8) "Obsolete industrial property” means industrial property the condition of which is substantially less
than an economically efficient functional condition.

(9) "Economically efficient functional condition” means a state or condition of property the desirability
and usefulness of which is not impaired due to changes in design, construction, technology, or improved
production processes, or from external influencing factors that make the property less desirable and valuable
for continued use.

(10) "Research and development laboratories” means building and structures, including the machinery,
equipment, furniture, and fixtures located in the building or structure, used or io be used for research or
experimental purposes that would be considered qualified research as that term is used in section 41 of the
internal revenue code, 26 USC 41, except that qualified research also includes qualified research funded by
grant, coatract, or otherwise by another person or governmental entity.

(11) "Manufacture of goods or materials" or "processing of goods or materials" means any type of
operation that would be conducted by an entity included in the classifications provided by sector 31-33 —
manufacturing, of the North American industry classification system, United States, 1997, published by the
office of management and budget, regardless of whether the entity conducting that operation is included in
that manual.

(12) "High-technology activity" means that term as defined in section 3 of the Michigan economic growth
authority act, 1995 PA 24, MCL 207.803.

(13) "Logistical optimization center" means a sorting and distribution center that optimizes transportation
and uses just-in-time inventory management and material handling,

(14) "Commercial property” means that term as defined in section 2 of the obsolete property rehabilitation
act, 2000 PA 146, MCIL. 125.2782.

(15) "Qualified commercial activity” means commercial property that meets all of the following:

{a) At least 90% of the property, excluding the surrounding green space, is used for warehousing,
distribution, or logistic purposes and is located in a county that borders another state or Canada or for a
communications center.

{b) Occupies a building or structure that is greater than 100,000 square feet in size.

{16) "Motorsports entertainment complex” means a closed-course motorsports facility, and its ancillary
grounds and facilities, that satisfies all of the following:

Rendsred Wednesday, March 7, 2018 Page 2 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 40 of 2018

© Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www. legislature.mi gov



(a) Has at least 70,000 fixed seats for race patrons.

(b) Has at least 6 scheduled days of motorsports events each calendar year, at least 2 of which shall be
comparable to nascar nextel cup events held in 2007 or their successor events.

(c) Serves food and beverages at the facility during sanctioned events each calendar year through
concession outlets, a majority of which are staffed by individuals who represent or are members of 1 or more
nonprofit civic or charitable organizations that directly financially benefit from the concession outlets' sales.

(d) Engages in tourism promotion.

(e) Has permanent exhibitions of motorsports history, events, or vehicles,

(17) "Major distribution and logistics facility" means a proposed distribution center that meets all of the
following:

(a) Contains at least 250,000 square feet.

(b) Has or will have an assessed value of $5,000,000.00 or more for the real property.

(c) Is located within 35 miles of the border of this state.

(d) Has as its purpose the distribution of inventory and materials to facilities owned by the taxpayer whose
primary business is the retail sale of sporting goods and related inventory.

History: 1974, Act 198, Imd. Eff. July 9, 1974,—Am. 1975, Act 302, Imd. Eff. Dec. 19, 1975;,—Am. 1976, Act 224, Imd. Eif. July
30, 1976;—Am. 1978, Act 37, Imd. Eff. Feb. 24, 1978;—Am. 1981, Act 211, Fmd. Eff. Dec. 30, 1981;—Am. 1982, Act 417, Imd. Eff.
Dec. 28, 1982;—Am. 1986, Act 66, Imd. Eff. Apr. 1, 1986—Am. 1999, Act 140, Imd. Eff. Oct. 18, 199%:—Am. 2000, Act 247, Imd.
Eff. June 29, 2000:—Am. 2002, Act 280, Imd. Eff May 9, 2002;—Am. 2003, Act 5, Imd. Eff. Apr. 24, 2003;—Am. 2005, Act 118, Iimd.
Eff. Sept. 22, 2005:—Am, 2005, Act 267, Imd. Eff. Dec. 16, 2005;——Am. 2007, Act 12, Imd. Eff. May 29, 2007;,—Am. 2007, Act 146,
Imd. Eff. Dec. 10, 2007—Am. 2008, Act 170, Imd. Eff. July 2, 2008:—Am. 2008, Act 457, Imd. Eff. Jan. 9, 2009;,—Am. 2008, Act 581,
Imd. Eff. Jan. 16, 2009—Am. 2009, Act 209, Imd. Eff. Jan. 4, 2010;—Am. 2010, Act 273, Imd. Eff. Dec. 15, 2010;—Am. 2011, Act
154, Tmd. Eff. Sept. 27, 2011.

Compiler's note: For transfer of powers and duties of department of commerce under Act 198 of 1974 to the chief executive officer
of the Michigan jobs commission, see E.R.O. Ne. 1994-8, compiled at MCL 408 .47 of the Michigan Compiled Laws.

Popular name: Act 198

207.553 Additional definitions.

Sec. 3. (1) "Plant rehabilitation district" means an area of a local governmental unit established as provided
in section 4.

(2) "Industrial development district” means an area established by a local governmental unit as provided in
section 4.

(3) "Industrial facility tax" means the specific tax levied under this act,

(4) "Industrial facilities exemption certificate” means a certificate issued pursuant to sections 5, 6, and 7.

(5) "Replacement” means the complete or partial demolition of obsolete industrial property and the
complete or partial reconstruction or installation of new property of similar utility.

(6) "Restoration"” means changes to obsolete industrial property other than replacement as may be required
to restore the property, together with all appurtenances to the property, to an economically efficient functional
condition. Restoration does not include delayed maintenance or the substitution or addition of tangible
personal property without major renovation of the industrial property. A program involving expenditures for
changes te the industrial property improvements aggregating less than 10% of the true cash value at
commencement of the restoration of the industrial property improvements is delayed maintenance.
Restoration includes major renovation including but not necessarily limited to the improvement of floor loads,
correction of deficient or excessive height, new or improved building equipment, including heating,
ventilation, and lighting, reducing multistory facilities to | or 2 stories, improved structural support including
foundations, improved roof structure and cover, floor replacement, improved wall placement, improved
exterior and interior appearance of buildings, improvements or modifications of machinery and equipment to
improve efficiency, decrease operating costs, or to increase productive capacity, and other physical changes as
may be required to restore the industrial property to an economically efficient functional condition, and shall
include land and building improvements and other tangible personal property incident to the improvements.

(7) "State equalized valuation” means the valuation determined under 1911 PA 44, MCL 209.1 to 209.8.

(8) "Speculative building” means a building that meets 1 of the following criteria and the machinery,
equipment, furniture, and fixtures located in the building:

(a) A new building that meets all of the following:

(1) The building is owned by, or approved as a speculative building by reselution of, a local governmental
unit in which the building is located or the building is owned by a development organization and located in
the district of the development organization.

(i) The building is constructed for the purpose of providing a manufacturing facility before the

Rendered Wednesday, March 7, 2018 Page 3 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 40 of 2018
© Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of wway. legislattire.mi.gov



identification of a specific user of that building.

(iii) The building does not qualify as a replacement facility.

(b) The building is an existing building on an improved parcel of industrial property used for the
manufacturing of goods or materials or processing of goods or materials. Not more than 1 building shall be
awarded an industrial facilities exemption certificate under this subdivision. A building that complies with
this subdivision shall be prestumed to have been constructed within 9 years of the filing of the application for
an industrial facilities exemption certificate and shall comply with the following:

(7) Has been unoccupied for at least 4 years immediately preceding the date the certificate is issued.

(i7) Is in an industrial development district created before January 1, 2011.

(iify Is located in a county with a population of more than 22,000 and less than 24,500 containing a city
with a population of more than 3,600 according to the last decennial census.

{9) "Development organization" means any economic development corporation, downtown development
authority, tax increment financing authority, or an organization under the supervision of and created for
economic development purposes by a local governmental unit,

(10) "Manufacturing facility" means buildings and structures, including the machinery, equipment,
furniture, and fixtures located therein, the primary purpose of which is 1 or more of the following:

(a) The manufacture of goods or materials or the processing of goods and materials by physical or
chemical change.

(b) The provision of research and development laboratories of companies whether or not the company
manufactures the products developed from their research activities.

{11) "Taxable value" means that value determined under section 27a of the general property tax act, 1893
PA 206, MCL 211.27a.

(12) "Strategic response center" means a facility that provides catastrophe response solutions through the
development and staffing of a national response center for which a plant rehabilitation district or an industrial
development district was created before December 31, 2007,

History: 1974, Act 198, Imd. Eff. July 9, 1974,—Am. 1975, Act 247, Imd. Eff. Sept. 4, 1975;—Am. 1982, Act 417, Imd. Eff. Dec.
28, 1982;:—Am. 1996, Act 1, Imd. Eff. Jan, 30, 1996;—Am. 2007, Act 13, Imd. Eff. May 29, 2007;:—Am. 2010, Act 122, Imd. Eff. July
19, 2010,

Compiler's note: For transfer of powers and duties of department of commerce under Act 198 of 1974 to the chief executive officer
of the Michigan jobs cornrnission, see ER (G No. 1994-8, compiled at MCL 408.47 of the Michigan Compiled Laws.

Popular name: Act 198

207.554 Plant rehabilitation district or industrial development district; establishment;
number of parcels; filing; notice; hearing; finding and determination; district established
by township; industrial property as part of industrial development district or plant
rehabilitation district also part of tax increment district; termination; notice.

See. 4. (1) A local governmental unit, by resolution of its legislative body, may establish plant
rehabilitation districts and industrial development districts that consist of 1 or more parcels or tracts of land or
a portion of a parcel or tract of land.

(2) The legislative body of a local governmental unit may establish a plant rehabilitation district or an
industrial development district on its own initiative or upon a written request filed by the owner or owners of
75% of the state equalized value of the industrial property located within a proposed plant rehabilitation
district or industrial development district. This request shall be filed with the clerk of the local governmental
unit.

(3) Except as provided in section 9(2)(h), after December 31, 1983, a request for the establishment of a
proposed plant rehabilitation district or industrial development district shall be filed only in connection with a
proposed replacement facility or new facility, the construction, acquisition, alteration, or installation of or for
which has not commenced at the time of the filing of the request. The legislative body of a local governmental
unit shall not establish a plant rehabilitation district or an industrial development district pursuant to
subsection (2) if it finds that the request for the district was filed after the commencement of construction,
alteration, or installation of, or of an acquisition related to, the proposed replacement facility or new facility.
This subsection shall not apply to a speculative building.

(4) Before adopting a resolution establishing a plant rehabilitation district or industrial development
district, the legislative body shall give written notice by certified mail to the owners of all real property within
the proposed plant rehabilitation district or industrial development district and shall hold a public hearing on
the establishment of the plant rehabilitation district or industrial development district at which those owners
and other residents or taxpayers of the local governmental unit shall have a right to appear and be heard.

(5) The legislative body of the local governmental unit, in its resolution establishing a plant rehabilitation
Rendered Wednesday, March 7, 2018 Page 4 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 40 of 2018

© Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courlesy of www legisiature.mi.gov



district, shall set forth a finding and determination that property comprising not less than 50% of the state
equalized valuation of the industrial property within the district is obsolete.

(6) A plant rehabilitation district or industrial development district established by a township shall be only
within the unincorporated territory of the township and shall not be within a village.

(7) Industrial property that is part of an industrial development district or a plant rehabilitation district may
also be part of a tax increment district established under the tax increment finance authority act, 1980 PA 450,
MCL 125.1801 to 125.1830.

(8) A local governmental unit, by resolution of its legislative body, may terminate a plant rehabilitation
district or an industrial development district, if there are no industrial facilities exemption certificates in effect
in the plant rehabilitation district or the industrial development district on the date of the resolution to
terminate.

{9) Before acting on a proposed resolution terminating a plant rehabilitation district or an industrial
development district, the local governmental unit shall give at least 14 days' written notice by certified mail to
the owners of all real property within the plant rehabilitation district or industrial development district as
determined by the tax records in the office of the assessor or the freasurer of the local tax collecting unit in
which the property is located and shall hold a public hearing on the termination of the plant rehabilitation
district or industrial development district at which those owners and other residents or taxpayers of the local
governmental unit, or others, shall have a right to appear and be heard.

History: 1974, Act 198, Imd. Eff. July 9, 1974,—Am. 1980, Act 449, Imd. Eff. Jan. 15, 1981;—Am. 1982, Act 417, Imd. Eff. Dec.
28, 1982;:—Am. 1993, Act 334, Eff Apr. 1, 1994;—Am. 1994, Act 266, Eff. Imd. July 6, 1994;—Am. 1995, Act 218, Imd. Eff Dec. 1,
1995 —Am. 1999, Act 140, Imd. Eff. Oct. 18, 1999—Am. 2004, Act 437, Imd. Eff. Dec. 21, 2004

Compiler's note: For transfer of powers and duties of department of commerce under Act 158 of 1574 to the chief executive officer
of the Michigan jobs commission, see E.R.O. No. 1994-8, compiled at MCL 408.47 of the Michigan Compiled Laws.

Popular name: Act 198

207.555 Application for industrial exemption ceriificate; filing; contents; notice to assessing
and taxing units; hearing; application fee.

Sec. 5. (1) After the establishment of a district, the owner or lessee of a facility may file an application for
an industrial facilities exemption certificate with the clerk of the local governmental unit that established the
plant rehabilitation district or industrial development district. The application shall be filed in the manner and
form prescribed by the commission. The application shall contain or be accompanied by a general description
of the facility and a general description of the proposed use of the facility, the general nature and extent of the
restoration, replacement, or construction to be undertaken, a descriptive list of the equipment that will be a
part of the facility, a time schedule for undertaking and completing the restoration, replacement, or
construction of the facility, and information relating to the requirements in section 9.

{2) Upon receipt of an application for an industrial facilities exemption certificate, the clerk of the local
govemmental unit shall notify in writing the assessor of the assessing unit in which the facility is located or to
be located, and the legislative body of each taxing unit that levies ad valorem property taxes in the local
governmental unit in which the facility is located or to be located. Before acting upon the application, the
legislative body of the local governmental unit shall afford the applicant, the assessor, and a representative of
the affected taxing units an opportunity for a hearing.

(3) The local governmental unit may charge the applicant an application fee to process an application for
an industrial facilities exemption certificate. The application fee shall not exceed the actual cost incurred by
the local governmental unit in processing the application or 2% of the total property taxes abated under this
act for the term that the industrial facilities exemption certificate is in effect, whichever is less. A local
governmental unit shall not charge an applicant any other fee under this act.

History: 1974, Act 198, Imd. Eff. July 9, 1974—Am. 1976, Act 224, Imd. Eff. July 30, 1976;—Am. 1996, Act 323, Imd. Eff. June
26, 1996.

Popular name: Act 198

207.556 Application for industrial facilities exemption certificate; approval or disapproval;
appeal.

Sec. 6. The legislative body of the local governmental unit, not more than 60 days after receipt by its clerk
of the application, shall by resolution either approve or disapprove the application for an industrial facilities
exemption certificate in accordance with section 9 and the other provisions of this act. If disapproved, the
reasons shall be set forth in writing in the resolution, If approved, the clerk shall forward the application to the
commission within 60 days of approval or before October 31 of that year, whichever is first, or as otherwise
provided in section 7 in order to receive the industrial facilitics exemption certificate effective for the
Rendered Wednesday, March 7, 2018 Page § Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 40 of 2018

© Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legisiature.mi gov



following year. If disapproved, the clerk shall return the application to the applicant. The applicant may
appeal the disapproval to the commission within 10 days after the date of the disapproval.

History: 1974, Act 198, Imd. Eff. July 9, 1974—Am. 1996, Act 323, Imd. Eff. June 26, 1996:—Am. 2013, Act 85, [ind. Eff. June
28,2013,

Popular name: Act 198

207.557 Determination by commission; issuance of industrial facilities exemption certificate;
notice of application; concurrence; effective date of certificate; mailing and filing of
certificate; notice of refusal io issue certificate; resolutions approving or amending
industrial facilities exemption certificate; completed application; error or mistake; failure
to forward application, amended or transfer application, or request to revoke certificate;
duties of commission.

Sec. 7. (1) Within 60 days after receipt of an approved application or an appeal of a disapproved
application that was submitted to the commission before Ociober 31 of that year, the commission shall
determine whether the facility is a speculative building or designed and acquired primarily for the purpose of
restoration or replacement of obsolete industrial property or the construction of new industrial property, and
whether the facility otherwise complies with section 9 and with the other provisions of this act, If the
commission so finds, it shall issue an industrial facilities exemption certificate. Before issuing a certificate the
commission shall notify the state treasurer of the application and shall obtain the written concurrence of the
department of licensing and regulatory affairs that the application complies with the requirements in section .
Except as otherwise provided in this section and section 7a, the effective date of the certificate for a
replacement facility or new facility is the immediately succeeding December 31 following the date the
certificate is issued. For a speculative building or a portion of a speculative building, except as otherwise
provided in section 7a, the effective date of the certificate is the immediately succeeding December 31
following the date the speculative building, or the portion of a speculative building, is used as a
manufacturing facility.

(2) The commission shall send an indusirial facilities exemption certificate, when issued, by mail to the
applicant, and a certified copy by mail to the assessor of the assessing unit in which the facility is located or to
be located, and that copy shall be filed in his or her office. Notice of the commission's refusal to issue a
certificate shall be sent by mail to the same persons.

(3) Notwithstanding any other provision of this act, if on December 29, 1986 a local governmental unit
passed a resolution approving an exemption certificate for 10 years for real and personal property but the
commission did not receive the application until 1992 and the application was not made complete until 1995,
then the commission shall issue, for that property, an industrial facilities exemption certificate that begins
December 30, 1987 and ends December 30, 1997,

{(4) Notwithstanding any other provision of this act, if pursuant to section 16a a local governmental unit
passed a resolution approving an industrial facilities exemption certificate for a new facility on October 14,
2003 for a certificate that expired in December 2002, the commission shall issue for that property an
industrial facilities exemption certificate that begins on December 30, 2002 and ends December 30, 2009.

(5) Notwithstanding any other provision of this act, if on or before February 10, 2007 a local governmental
unit passed a resolution approving an amendment of an industrial facilities exemption certificate for a
replacement facility and that certificate was revoked by the commission effective December 30, 2005 with the
order of revocation issued by the commission on April 10, 2006, notwithstanding the revocation, the
commission shall retroactively amend the certificate and give full effect to the amended certificate, which
shall include the additional personal property expenditures described in the resolution amending the
certificate, for the period of time beginning when the certificate was originally approved until the certificate
was revoked.

(6) Notwithstanding any other provision of this act, if on July 23, 2012, a local governmental unit passed a
resolution approving an industrial facilities exemption certificate for a new facility, but the application was
not made complete until 2013, the commission shall issue for that property an industrial facilities exemption
certificate that begins on December 31, 2012 and ends December 31, 2024,

(7) Notwithstanding any other provision of this act, if on February 21, 2012, a local governmental unit
passed a resolution approving an industrial facilities exemption certificate for a new facility, but the
application was not made complete until 2013, the commission shall issue for that property an industrial
facilities exemption certificate that begins on December 31, 2012,

(8) If the commission receives an application under this act for an industrial facilities exemption certificate
for a new facility or a replacement facility and the application is made complete before October 31 following

Rendered Wednesday, March 7, 2018 Page 6 Michigan Complled Laws Complete Through PA 40 of 2018
© Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legisiature.migov



the year in which the application is received by the commission, the commission may issue for that property
an industrial facilities exemption cettificate that has an effective date of December 31 of the year in which the
application was received by the commission,

(9) If an error or mistake in an application for an industrial facilities exemption certificate is discovered
after the local governmental unit has passed a resolution approving the application or after the commission
has issued a certificate for the application, an applicant may submit an amended application in the same
manner as an original appHcation under this act that corrects the error or mistake. The legislative body of the
local governmental unit and the commission may approve or deny the amended application. If the
commission previously issued a certificate for the original application and approves an amended application
under this subsection, the commission shall issue an amended certificate for the amended application with the
same effective date as the original certificate.

(10) If the clerk of the qualified local governmental unit failed to forward an application, an amended or
transfer application, or a request to revoke a certificate that was approved by the legislative body of the
qualified local governmental unit before October 31 of that year to the commission before October 31 but
filed the application, the amended or transfer application, or the request to revoke a certificate before October
31 of the immediately succeeding year and the commission approves the application, the amended or transfer
application, or the request to revoke a certificate, notwithstanding any other provision of this act, the
certificate shall be considered to be issued, transferred, amended, or revoked on December 31 of the year in
which the local governmental unit approved the application, the amended or transfer application, or the
request to revoke the certificate.

(11} Beginning October 1, 2013, the commission shall do all of the following for each industrial facilitics
gxemption certificate approved or disapproved by the commission under subsection (8), (), or (10):

(a) Notify the office of the member of the house of representatives of this state and the office of the senator
of this state, who represent the geographic area in which the property covered by the application for a
certificate is located, that an application for a certificate has been approved or disapproved under subsection
(8), (9), or (10).

(b) Publish on its website a copy of the certificate if approved, or a copy of the denial notice if
disapproved, under subsection (8), (9), or (10) and whatever additional information the commission considers
appropriate regarding the application,

History: 1974, Act 198, Imd. Eff. July 9, 1974,—Am. 1975, Act 302, Imd. Eff. Dec. 19, 1975;—Am. 1982, Act 417, Imd. Eff. Dec.
28, 1982—Am. 1996, Act 323, Imd. Eff. June 26, 1996;—Am. 1996, Act 513, Imd. Eff. Jan. 13, 1997;,—Am. 2005, Act 267, Imd. Eff.
Dec. 16, 2005—Am. 2006, Act 483, Imd. Eff Dec. 28, 2006:—Am. 2008, Act 457, Imd. Eff. Jan 9, 2009,—Am. 2013, Act 85, Imd.
Eff. June 28, 2013;—Am. 2014, Act 514, Imd. Eff. Jan. 14, 20135,

Popular name: Act 158

207.557a Cost of facility exceeding certain amount of state equalized value.

Sec. 7a. If, after reviewing the application described in section 7, the commission determines that the cost
of the facility exceeds $150,000,000.00 of state equalized value, then afl of the following apply:

(a) The replacement, restoration, or construction of the facility shall be completed within 6 years of the
effective date of the initial industrial facilities exemption certificate or a greater time as authorized by the
commission for good cause.

(b) The commission shall provide not more than 3 separate industrial facilities exemption certificates for
the facility. The initial industrial facilities exemption certificate shall be effective for not more than 14 years.
The second industrial facilities exemption ceriificate shall be effective 2 years after the initial industrial
facilities exemption certificate becomes effective and shall continue to be effective for not more than 14
years. The third industrial facilities exemption certificate shall be effective 4 years afier the initial industrial
facilities exemption certificate becomes effective and shall continue to be effective for not more than 14
years, The commission may modify each certificate during the replacement, restoration, or construction of the
facility.

(¢) For each industrial facilities exemption certificate, the commission shall determine the portion of the
facility to be completed. During the first 2 years of the industrial facilities exemption certificate period, the
state equalized valuation of that portion of the facility shall be used to calculate the industrial facilities tax as
provided in section 14, Upon the expiration of each industrial facilities exemption certificate or its revocation
under section 15, that portion of the facility is subject to the general ad valorem property tax.

(d) Notwithstanding subdivision (b), an industrial facilities exemption certificate for a facility described in
this section shall expire not mare than 12 years from the completion of the facility.

History: Add. 1996, Act 513, Imd. Eff Jan. 13, 1997.

Popular name: Act 198
Rendered Wednesday, March 7, 2018 Page 7 Michigan Compiled Laws Comglete Through PA 40 of 2018

© Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www. legisiature.migov



207.558 Exemption of facility and certain persons from ad valorem taxes.

Sec. 8. A facility or that portion of a facility described in section 7a, for which an industrial facilities
exemption certificate is in effect, but not the land on which the facility is located or to be located or inventory
of the facility, for the period on and after the effective date of the certificate and continuing so long as the
industrial facilities exemption certificate is in force, is exempt from ad valorem real and personal property
taxes and the lessee, occupant, user, or person in possession of that facility for the same period is exempt from
ad valorem taxes imposed under Act No. 189 of the Public Acts of 1953, being sections 211,181 and 211.182
of the Michigan Compiled Laws.

History: 1974, Act 198, Imd. Eff. July 9, 1974—Am. 1993, Act 334, Eff. Apr. {, 1994;—Am. 1996, Act 513, Imd. Eff. Jan. 13,
1997.

Popular name: Act 198

207.559 Finding and determination in resolution approving application for certificate;
valuation requiring separate finding and statement; compliance with certain requirements
as condition to approval of application and granting of certificate; demolition, sale, or
transfer of obsolete industrial property; certificate applicable to speculative building;
procedural information; replacement facility; property owned or operated by casino;
"casino” defined; issuance of certificates.

Sec. 9. (1) The legislative body of the local governmental unit, in its resolution approving an application,
shall set forth a finding and determination that the granting of the industrial facilities exemption certificate,
considered together with the aggregate amount of industrial facilities exemption certificates previously
granted and currently in force, shall not have the effect of substantialty impeding the operation of the local
governmental unit or impairing the financial soundness of a taxing unit that levies an ad valorem property tax
in the local governmental unit in which the facility is located or to be located. If the state equalized valuation
of property proposed to be exempt pursuant to an application under consideration, considered together with
the aggregate state equalized valuation of property exempt under certificates previously granted and currently
in force, exceeds 5% of the state equalized valuation of the local governmental unit, the commission, with the
approval of the state treasurer, shall make a separate finding and shall include a statement in the order
approving the industrial facilities exemption certificate that exceeding that amount shall not have the effect of
substantially impeding the operation of the local governmental unit or impairing the financial soundness of an
affected taxing unit.

(2) Except for an application for a speculative building, which is governed by subsection (4), the legislative
body of the local governmental unit shall not approve an application and the commission shall not grant an
industrial facilities exemption certificate unless the applicant complies with all of the following requirements:

(a) The commencement of the restoration, replacement, or construction of the facility occurred not earlier
than 12 months before the filing of the application for the industrial facilities exemption certificate. If the
application is not filed within the 12-month period, the application may be filed within the succeeding
12-month period and the industrial facilities exemption certificate shall in this case expire 1 year earlier than it
would have expired if the application had been timely filed. This subdivision does not apply for applications
filed with the local governmental unit after December 31, 1983.

(b) For applications made after December 31, 1983, the proposed facility shall be [ocated within a plant
rehabilitation district or industrial development district that was duly established in a local governmental unit
eligible under this act to establish a district and that was established upon a request filed or by the local
governmental unit's own initiative taken before the commencement of the restoration, replacement, or
construction of the facility.

{c) For applications made after December 31, 1983, the commencement of the restoration, replacement, or
construction of the facility occurred not earlier than 6 months before the filing of the application for the
industrial facilities exemption certificate.

(d) The application relates to a construction, restoration, or replacement program that when completed
constitutes a new or replacement facility within the meaning of this act and that shall be situated within a
plant rehabilitation district or industrial development district duly established in a local governmental unit
eligible under this act to establish the district,

(e) Completion of the facility is calculated to, and will at the time of issuance of the certificate have the
reasonable likelihood to create employment, retain employment, prevent a loss of employment, or produce
energy in the community in which the facility is situated.

(f) Completion of the facility does not constitute merely the addition of machinery and equipment for the
purpose of increasing productive capacity but rather is primarily for the purpose and will primarily have the
Rendered Wednesday, March 7, 2018 Page 8 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 40 of 2018

© Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www legislature.migov



effect of restoration, replacement, or updating the technology of obsolete industrial property. An increase in
productive capacity, even though significant, is not an impediment to the issuance of an industrial facilities
exemption certificate if other criteria in this section and act are met. This subdivision does not apply to a new
facility.

(g) The provisions of subdivision (c) do not apply to a new facility located in an existing industrial
development district owned by a person who filed an application for an industrial facilities exemption
certificate in April of 1992 if the application was approved by the local governing body and was denied by the
state tax commission in April of 1993,

(h) The provisions of subdivisions (b) and (¢) and section 4(3) do not apply to ! or more of the following:

(#) A facility located in an industrial development district owned by a person who filed an application for
an industrial facilities exemption certificate in October 1995 for construction that was commenced in July
1992 in a district that was established by the legislative body of the local governmental unit in July 1994. An
industrial facilities exemption certificate described in this subparagraph shall expire as provided in section
16(3).

(i) A facility located in an industrial development district that was established in January 1994 and was
owned by a person who filed an application for an industrial facilities exemption certificate in February 1994
if the personal property and real property portions of the application were approved by the legislative body of
the local governmental unit and the personal property portion of the application was approved by the state tax
commission in December 1994 and the real property portion of the application was denied by the state tax
commission in December 1994. An industrial facilities exemption certificate deseribed in this subparagraph
shall expire as provided in section 16(3).

(iii) A Tacility located in an industrial development district that was established in December 1995 and was
owned by a person who filed an application for an industrial facilitics exemptions certificate in November or
December 1995 for construction that was commenced in September 1995.

(iv) A facility located in an industrial development district owned by a person who filed an application for
an industrial facilities exemption certificate in July 2001 for construction that was commenced in February
2001 in a district that was established by the legislative body of the local governmental unit in September
2001. An industrial facilities exemption certificate described in this subparagraph shall expire as provided in
section 16. The facility described in this subparagraph shall be taxed under this act as if it was granted an
industrial facilities exemption certificate in October 2001, and a corrected tax bill shall be issued by the local
tax collecting unit if the local tax collecting unit has possession of the tax roll or by the county treasurer if the
county has possession of the tax roll. If granting the industrial facilities exemption certificate under this
subparagraph results in an overpayment of the tax, a rebate, including any interest and penalties paid, shall be
made to the taxpayer by the local tax collecting unit if the local tax collecting unit has possession of the tax
roll or by the county treasurer if the county has possession of the tax roll within 30 days of the date the
exemption is granted. The rebate shall be without interest.

(v) A facility located in an industrial development district owned by a person who filed an application for
an industrial facilities exemption certificate in December 2005 for construction that was commenced in
Septernber 2005 in a district that was established by the legislative body of the local governmental unit in
December 2005. An industrial facilities exemption certificate described in this subparagraph shall expire as
provided in section 16.

{vi) A facility located in an existing industrial development district owned by a person who filed or
amended an application for an industrial facilities exemption certificate for real property in July 2006 if the
application was approved by the legislative body of the local governmental unit in September 2066 but not
submitted to the state tax commission until September 2006,

(vif) A new facility located in an existing industrial development district owned by a person who filed or
amended an application for an industrial facilities exemption certificate for personal property in June 2006 if
the application was approved by the legislative body of the local governmental unit in August 2006 but not
submitted to the state tax commission until 2007. The effective date of the certificate shall be December 31,
2006.

(viii) A new facility located in an industrial development district that was established by the legislative
body of the local governmental unit in September of 2007 for construction that was commenced in March
2007 and for which an application for an industrial facilities exemption certificate was filed in September of
2007.

(ix) A facility located in an industrial development district that was established by the legislative body of
the local governmental unit in August 2007 and was owned by a person who filed an application for an
industrial facilities exemption certificate in June 2007 for equipment that was purchased in January 2007,

{x) A facility located in an industrial development district that otherwise meets the criteria of this act that
Rendered Wednesday, March 7, 2018 Page 9 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 40 of 2018

© Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www legisiature.mi gov



has received writter approval from the chairperson of the Michigan economic growth authority.

(xi) A new facility located in an industrial development district that was established by the legislative body
of the local governmental unit in August of 2008 for construction that was commenced in December 2005 and
certificate of occupancy issued in September 2006 for which an application for an industrial facilities
exemption certificate was filed in August of 2008,

(xii) A facility located in an industrial development district owned by a person who filed an application for
a certificate for real and personal property in April 2005 if the application was approved by the legislative
body of the local governmental unit in July 2005 for construction that was commenced in July 2004.

(xiif) A facility located in an industrial development district that was established by the legislative body of
the local governmental unit in December 2007 for construction that was commenced in September 2007 and 2
certificate of occupancy issued in September 2008 for which an application for an industrial facilities
exemption certificate was approved in May of 2008.

(i) The provisions of subdivision {c) do not apply to any of the following:

({) A new facility located in an existing industrial development district owned by a person who filed an
application for an industrial facilities exemption certificate in October 1993 if the application was approved
by the legislative body of the local governmental unit and the real property portion of the application was
denied by the state tax commission in December 1993,

{(#) A new facility located in an existing industrial development district owned by a person who filed an
application for an industrial facilities exemption certificate in September 1993 if the personal property portion
of the application was approved by the legislative body of the local governmental unit and the real property
portion of the application was denied by the legislative body of the local governmental unit in October 1993
and subsequently approved by the legislative body of the local governmental unit in Septernber 1994.

(@if) A facility located in an existing industrial development district owned by a person who filed an
application for an industrial facilities exemption certificate in August 1993 if the application was approved by
the local governmental unit in September 1993 and the application was denied by the state tax commission in
December 1993,

(iv) A facility located in an existing industrial development district oceupied by a person who filed an
application for an industrial facilities exemption certificate in June of 1995 if the application was approved by
the legislative body of the local governmental unit in October of 1995 for construction that was commenced
in November or December of 1994,

() A facility located in an existing industrial development district owned by a person who filed an
application for an industrial facilities exemption certificate in June of 1995 if the application was approved by
the legislative body of the local governmental unit in July of 1995 and the personal property portion of the
application was approved by the state tax commission in November of 1995,

(j) If the facility is locating in a plant rehabilitation district or an industrial development district from
another location in this state, the owner of the facility is not delinquent in any of the taxes described in section
10(1)(a) of the Michigan renaissance zone act, 1996 PA 376, MCIL, 1252690, or substantially delinquent in
any of the taxes described in and as provided under section 10(1)(b) of the Michigan renaissance zone act,
1996 PA 376, MCL 125.2690.

(3) If the replacement facility when completed will not be located on the same premises or contiguous
premises as the obsolete industrial property, then the applicant shall make provision for the obsolete industrial
property by demolition, sale, or transfer to another person with the effect that the obsolete industrial property
shall within a reasonable time again be subject to assessment and taxation under the general property tax act,
1893 PA 206, MCL 211.1 to 211.155, or be used in a manner consistent with the general purposes of this act,
subject to approval of the commission,

(4) The legislative body of the local governmental unit shall not approve an application and the
commission shall not grant an industrial facilities exemption certificate that applies to a speculative building
unless the speculative building is or is to be located in a plant rehabilitation district or industrial development
district duly established by a local governmental unit eligible under this act to establish a district; the
speculative building was constructed less than 9 vears before the filing of the application for the industrial
facilities exemption certificate; the speculative building has not been occupied since completion of
construction; and the speculative building otherwise qualifies under subsection (2)(e) for an industrial
facilities exemption certificate. An industrial facilities exemption certificate granted under this subsection
shall expire as provided in section 16(3).

(5) Not later than September 1, 1989, the commission shall provide to all local assessing units the name,
address, and telephone number of the person on the commission staff responsible for providing procedural
information concerning this act. Afier October 1, 1989, a local unit of government shall notify each
prospective applicant of this information in writing.

Rendered Wednesday, March 7, 2018 Page 10 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 40 of 2018

© Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www. legislatiirs. mi.gov



{6) Notwithstanding any other provision of this act, if on December 29, 1986 a local governmental unit
passed a resolution approving an exemption certificate for 10 years for real and personal property but the
commission did not receive the application until 1992 and the application was not made complete until 1995,
then the commission shall issue, for that property, an industrial facilities exemption certificate that begins
December 30, 1987 and ends December 30, 1997. The facility described in this subsection shall be taxed
under this act as if it was granted an industrial facilities exemption certificate on December 30, 1987.

(7) Notwithstanding any other provision of this act, if a local governmental unit passed a resolution
approving an industrial facilities exemption certificate for a new facility on July 8, 1991 but rescinded that
resolution and passed a resolution approving an industrial facilities exemption certificate for that same facility
as a replacement facility on October 21, 1996, the commission shall issue for that property an industrial
facilities exemption certificate that begins December 30, 1991 and ends December 2003, The replacement
facility described in this subsection shall be taxed under this act as if it was granted an industrial facilities
exemption certificate on December 30, 1991.

(8) Property owned or operated by a casino is not industrial property or otherwise eligible for an abatement
or reduction of ad valorem property taxes under this act. As used in this subsection, "casino" means a casino
or a parking lot, hotel, motel, convention and trade center, or retail store owned or operated by a casino, an
affiliate, or an affiliated company, regulated by this state pursuant to the Michigan gaming control and
revemue act, 1996 IL 1, MCL 432.201 to 432.226.

(9) Notwithstanding section 16a and any other provision of this act, if a local governmental unit passed a
resolution approving an industrial facilities exemption certificate for a new facility on October 28, 1996 for a
certificate that expired in December 2003 and the local governmental unit passes a resolution approving the
extension of the certificate after December 2003 and before March 1, 2006, the commission shall issue for
that property an industrial facilities exemption certificate that begins on December 30, 2005 and ends
December 30, 2010 as long as the property continues to qualify under this act.

(10) Notwithstanding any other provision of this act, if the commission issued an industrial facilities
exemption certificate for a new facility on December 8, 1998 but revoked that industrial facilities exemption
certificate for that same facility effective December 30, 2006 and that new facility is purchased by a buyer on
or before November 1, 2007, the commission shall issue for that property an industrial facilities exemption
certificate that begins December 31, 1998 and ends December 30, 2010 and shall transfer that industrial
facilities exemption certificate to the buyer. The new facility described in this subsection shall be taxed under
this act as if it was granted an industrial facilities exemption certificate effective on December 31, 1998,

(11) Notwithstanding any other provision of this act, if the commission issued industrial facilities
exemption certificates for new facilities on October 30, 2002, September 9, 2003, and November 30, 2005 but
revoked the industrial facilities exemption certificates for the same facilities effective December 30, 2007 and
the new facilities continue to qualify under this act, the commission shall issue for the properties industrial
facilities exemption certificates which end respectively on December 30, 2008, December 30, 2009, and
December 30, 2011.

(12) Notwithstanding any other provision of this act, if in August 2008 a local governmental unit passed a
resolution approving an exemption certificate for 12 years for real and personal property but the commission
did not receive the application until 2008, then the commission shall issue, for that property, an industrial
facilities exemption certificate that begins December 31, 2006 and ends December 30, 2018. The facility
described in this subsection shall be taxed under this act as if it had been granted an industrial facilities
exemption certificate on December 31, 2006,

(13) Notwithstanding any other provision of this act, if in September 2011 or October 2011 a local
governmental unit passed a resolution approving an exemption certificate for 12 years for personal property
but the commission did not receive the application until November 2011 and the commission approved the
applications in May 2012, then the commission shall issue, for that property, an industrial facilities exemption
certificate that begins December 31, 2011 and ends December 30, 2023. The facility described in this
subsection shall be taxed under this act as if it had been granted an industrial facilities exemption certificate
on December 31, 2011.

(14) Notwithstanding any other provision of this act, if on August 23, 2011 a local governmental unit
passed a resolution approving an exemption certificate for 12 years for real property and the emergency
manager subsequently appointed for that local community issued an order approving the exemption certificate
on November 8, 2013 it the commission did not receive the application until November 27, 2013, then the
commission shall issue, for that property, an industrial facilitics exemption certificate that begins December
31, 2011 and ends December 30, 2023. The real property component of the facility described in this
subsection shall be taxed under this act as if it had been granted an industrial facilities exemption certificate
on December 31, 2011.

Rendered \Wednesday, March 7, 2018 Page 11 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 40 of 2018

© Legislative Council, State of Michigan Couriesy of www. legisiature.mi.gov



History: 1974, Act 198, Imd. Eff. July 9, 1974;:—Am. 1975, Act 302, Imd. Eff. Dec. 19, 1975,—Am. 1976, Act 224, Imd. Eff. July
30, 1976;—Am. 1982, Act 417, Imd. Eff. Dec. 28, 1982:—Am. 1985, Act 33, Imd. Eff June 13, 1985:—Am. 1989, Act 119, Imd, Eff.
June 28, 1989:—Am. 1990, Act 338, Imd. Eff. Dec. 21, 1990;—Am. 1991, Act 201, Imd. Eff Jan. 3, 1992,—Am, 1994, Act 76, Imd.
Eff. Apr. 11, 1994;—Am. 1994, Act 266, Imd. Eff. July 6, 1994;,—Am. 1994, Act 379, Imd. Eff. Dec., 27, 1994;,—Am, 1995, Act 218,
Imd. Eff Dec. 1, 1995;,—Am. 1996, Act 1, Imd. Eff. Jan. 30, 1996 —Am. 1996, Act 513, Imd. Eif. Jan. 13, 1997,—Am. 1999, Act 140,
Imd. Eff. Qct. 18, 1999;—Am. 2005, Act 251, Imd. Eff. Dec. 1, 2005.—Am. 2006, Act 22, Imd. Eff. Feb. 14, 2006;—Am. 2006, Act
436, Imd. Eff. Oct. 5, 2006,—Am. 2007, Act 146, Imd. Eff. Dec. 10, 2007,—Am. 2008, Act 170, Imd. Eff. July 2, 2008;,—Am. 2008,
Act 515, Imd. Bff. Jan. 13, 2009;—Am, 2008, Act 516, Imd. Eff. Jan, 13, 2009;,—Am. 2012, Act 490, Imd. Eff. Dec. 28, 2012;—Am.
2014, Act 513, Tmd, Eff. Jan. 14, 2015,

Compiler's note: Section 2 of Act 119 of 1989 provides:
“8ection 2. This amendatory act shall take effect beginning with taxes levied under this act in 1989.”

Popular name: Act 198

207.560 Annual determination of value of facility.

Sec. 10. (1) The assessor of each city or township in which there is a speculative building, new facility, or
replacement facility with respect to which 1 or more industrial facilities exemption certificates have been
issued and are in force shall determine annually as of December 31 the value and taxable value of each
facility separately, both for real and personal property, having the benefit of a certificate,

(2) The assessor, upon receipt of notice of the filing of an application for the issuance of a certificate, shall
determine and furnish to the local legislative body and the commission the value of the property to which the
application periains and other information as may be necessary to permit the local legislative body and the
comumission to make the determinations required by section 9(1).

History: 1974, Act 198, Tmd. Eff. July 9, 1974;—Am. 1975, Act 302, Imd. Eff. Dec. 19, 1975:—Am. 1982, Act 417, Imd. Eff. Dec.
28, 1982;—Am. 1996, Act 1, Imd. Eff. Jan. 30, 1996.

Popular name: Act 198

207.561 Industrial facility tax; payment; disbursements; allocation; receipt or retention of tax
payment by local or intermediate school district; disposition of amount disbursed to local
school district; facility located in renaissance zone; building or facility owned or operated
by qualified start-up business; "qualified start-up business” defined.

Sec. 11, {1) Except as provided in subsections (6} and (7), there is levied upon every owner of a
speculative building, a new facility, or a replacement facility to which an industrial facilities exemption
certificate is issued a specific tax to be known as the industrial facility tax and an administrative fee calculated
in the same manner and at the same rate that the local tax collecting unit imposes on ad valorem taxes
collected under the general property tax act, 1893 PA 206, MCL 211.1 to 211.155.

(2) The industrial facility tax and administrative fee are to be paid annually, at the same times, in the same
installments, and to the same officer or officers as taxes and administrative fees, if any, imposed under the
general property tax act, 1893 PA 206, MCL 211.1 to 211.153, are payable. Except as otherwise provided in
this section, the officer or officers shall disburse the industrial facility tax payments received each year to and
among the state, cities, townships, villages, school districts, counties, and authorities, at the same times and in
the same proportions as required by law for the disbursement of taxes collected under the general property tax
act, 1893 PA 206, MCL 211.1 to 211.155. To determine the proportion for the disbursement of taxes under
this subsection and for attribution of taxes under subsection (5) for taxes collected under industrial facilities
exemption certificates issued before January 1, 1994, the number of mills levied for local schoo! district
operating purposes to be used in the calculation shall equal the number of mills for local school district
operating purposes levied in 1993 minus the number of mills levied under the state education tax act, 1993 PA
331, MCL 211.901 to 211.906, for the year for which the disbursement is calculated.

(3) Except as provided by subsections (4} and (5), for an intermediate school district receiving state aid
under section 56, 62, or 81 of the state school aid act of 1979, 1979 PA 94, MCL 388.1656, 385.1662, and
388.1681, of the amount that would otherwise be disbursed to or retained by the intermediate school district,
all or a portion, to be determined on the basis of the tax rates being utilized to compute the amount of the state
school aid, shall be paid instead to the state treasury to the credit of the state school aid fund established by
section 11 of article IX of the state constitution of 1963, If the sum of any commercial facilities taxes
prescribed by the commercial redevelopment act, 1978 PA 255, MCL 207.651 to 207.668, and the industrial
facility taxes paid to the state treasury to the credit of the state school aid fund that would otherwise be
disbursed to the local or intermediate school district, under section 12 of the commercial redevelopment act,
1978 PA 255, MCL 207.662, and this section, exceeds the amount received by the local or intermediate
school district under sections 56, 62, and 81 of the state school aid act of 1979, 1979 PA 94, MCL 388.1656,

Renderad Wednesday, March 7, 2018 Page 12 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 40 of 2018
© Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtasy of www.legisiature.migov



388.1662, and 388.1681, the department of treasury shall allocate to each eligible local or intermediate school
district an amount equal to the difference between the sum of the commercial facilities taxes and the industrial
facility taxes paid to the state treasury to the credit of the state school aid fund and the amount the local or
intermediate school district received under sections 56, 62, and 81 of the state school aid act of 1979, 1979
PA 94, MCL 388.1656, 388.1662, and 388.1681. This subsection does not apply to taxes levied for either of
the following:

(a) Mills allocated to an intermediate school district for operating purposes as provided for under the
property tax limitation act, 1933 PA 62, MCL 211.201 to 211.217a.

{b) An intermediate school district that is not receiving state aid under section 56 or 62 of the state school
aid act of 1979, 1979 PA 94, MICL 388.1656 and 388.1662.

{4) For industrial facilities taxes levied before 1994, a local or intermediate school district shall receive or
retain its industrial facility tax payment that is levied in any year and becomes a lien before December 1 of the
year if the district files a statement with the state treasurer not later than June 30 of the year certifying that the
district does not expect to receive state school aid payments under section 56, 62, or 81 of the state school aid
act of 1979, 1979 PA 94, MCL 388.1656, 388.1662, and 388.1681, in the state fiscal year commencing in the
vear this statement is filed and if the district did not receive state school aid payments under section 56, 62, or
81 of the state school aid act of 1979, 1979 PA 94, MCL 388.1656, 388.1662, and 388.1681, for the state
fiscal year concluding in the year the statement required by this subsection is filed. However, if a local or
intermediate school district receives or retains its summer industrial facility tax payment under this subsection
and becomes entitled to receive state school aid payments under section 56, 62, or 81 of the state school aid
act of 1979, 1979 PA 94, MCL 388.1656, 388.1662, and 388.1681, in the state fiscal year commencing in the
year in which it filed the statement required by this subsection, the district inmediately shall pay to the state
treasury to the credit of the state school aid fund an amount of the summer industrial facility tax payments that
would have been paid to the siate treasury to the credit of the state school aid fund under subsection (3) had
not this subsection allowed the district to receive or retain the summer industrial facility tax payment.

(5) For industrial facilities taxes levied after 1993, the amount to be disbursed to a local school district,
except for that amount of tax attributable to mills levied under section 1211(2) or 1211¢ of the revised school
code, 1976 PA 451, MCL 380.1211 and 380.1211¢, and mills that are not included as mills levied for school
operating purposes under section 1211 of the revised school code, 1976 PA 451, MCL 380.1211, shall be paid
to the state treasury and credited to the state school aid fund established by section 11 of article IX of the state
constitution of 1963.

(6) A speculative building, a new facility, or a replacement facility located in a renaissance zone under the
Michigan renaissance zone act, 1996 PA 376, MCL 125.2681 to 125.2696, is exempt from the industrial
facility tax levied under this act to the extent and for the duration provided pursvant to the Michigan
renaissance zone act, 1996 PA 376, MCL 125.2681 to 125.2696, except for that portion of the industrial
facility tax attributable to a special assessment or a tax described in section 7ff{2) of the general property tax
act, 1893 PA 206, MCL 211.71f. The industrial facility tax calculated under this subsection shall be disbursed
proportionately to the local taxing unit or units that levied the special assessment or the tax described in
section 71i{2) of the general property tax act, 1893 PA 206, MCL 211.71f.

(7) Upon application for an exemption under this subsection by a qualified start-up business, the governing
body of a local tax collecting unit may adopt a resolution to exempt a speculative building, a new facility, or a
replacement facility of a qualified start-up business from the collection of the industrial facility tax levied
under this act in the same manner and under the same terms and conditions as provided for the exemption in
section 7hh of the general property tax act, 1893 PA 206, MCL 211.7hh. The clerk of the local tax collecting
unit shall notify in writing the assessor of the local tax collecting unit and the legislative body of each taxing
unit that levies ad valorem property taxes in the local tax collecting unit. Before acting on the resolution, the
goveming body of the local tax collecting unit shall afford the assessor and a representative of the affected
taxing units an opportunity for a hearing. If a resolution authorizing the exemption is adopted in the same
manner as provided in section 7hh of the general property tax act, 1893 PA 206, MCL 211,7hh, a speculative
building, a new facility, or a replacement facility owned or operated by a qualified start-up business is exempt
from the indusirial facility tax levied under this act, except for that portion of the industrial facility tax
attributable to a special assessment or a tax described in section 7ff{(2) of the general property tax act, 1893
PA 206, MCL 211.7ff, for the year in which the resolution is adopted. A gualified start-up business is not
eligible for an exemption under this subsection for more than 5 years. A qualified start-up business may
receive the exemption under this subsection in nonconsecutive years. The industrial facility tax calculated
under this subsection shall be disbursed proportionately to the taxing unit or units that levied the special
assessment or the tax described in section 7f{2) of the general property tax act, 1893 PA 206, MCL 211.7{f.
As used in this subsection, "qualified start-up business” means that term as defined in section 31a of the single
Rendered Wednesday, March 7, 2018 Page 13 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 40 of 2018

© Legislative Council, State of Michigan Couirtesy of www. legisiature.migov



business tax act, 1975 PA 228, MCL 208.31a, or in section 415 of the Michigan business tax act, 2007 PA 36,
MCL 208.1415.

History: 1974, Act 198, Imd. Eff. July 9, 1974;,—Am. 1975, Act 247, Imd. Eff. Sept. 4, 1975:—Am, 1982, Act 417, Imd. Eff. Dec.
28, 1982:—Am. 1983, Act 139, Imd. Eff July 18, 1983;,—Am. 1984, Act 122, Imd. Eff. June 1, 1984;—Am. 1993, Act 334, Eff. Apr. 1,
1994:—Am. 1994, Act 266, Imd. Eff. July 6, 1994:—Am. 1994, Act 379, Imd. Eff. Dec. 27, 1994;,—Am. 1995, Act 132, Imd. Eff. July
10, 1995:—Am. 1995, Act 446, Imd. Eff. Dec. 9, 1996;—Am. 2001, Act 157, Imd. Eff. Nov. 6, 2001;—Am. 2004, Act 323, Imd. Eff.
Aug. 27, 2004;—Am. 2007, Act 195, Imd. Eff. Dec. 21, 2007,

Campiler’s note: Act 165 of 1989, purporting to amend MCL 207.561 and 207.564, could not take effect “unless amendment 2 of
House Joint Resolution I of the 85th Legislature becomes a part of the state constitution of 1963 as provided in section 1 of article XII of

the state constitution of 1963.” House Joint Resolution I was submitted to, and disapproved by, the people at the special election held on
November 7, 1985.

Popular name: Act 198

207.561a Facility subject to industrial facilities exemption certificate; exemption for eligible
manufacturing personal property; extension; filing combined document; “efigible
manufacturing persenal property” and "eligible personal property" defined.

Sec. 11a. (1) If a facility was subject to an industrial facilities exemption certificate on or after December
31, 2012, notwithstanding any other provision of this act to the contrary, that portion of the facility that is
eligible manufacturing personal property shall remain subject to the industrial facilities tax and shall remain
exempt from ad valorem property taxes as provided in section 8 until that eligible manufacturing personal
property would otherwise be exempt from the collection of taxes under section 9m, 9n, or 9o of the general
property tax act, 1893 PA 206, MCL 211.9m, 211.9n, and 211.90. The holder of an industrial facilities
exemption certificate that has been extended under this subsection shall indicate that portion of a facility that
is eligible manufacturing personal property by annually filing the combined document required under section
9m or 9n of the general property tax act, 1893 PA 206, MCL 211.9m and 211.9n, with the assessor of the
township or city in which the eligible manufacturing personal property is located by the date required under
section 9m or 9n of the general property tax act, 1893 PA 206, MCL 211.9m and 211.9n.

(2) As used in this section:

(a) "Eligible manufacturing personal property" means that term as defined in section 9m of the general
property tax act, 1893 PA 206, MCL 211.9m.

(b) "Eligible personal property" means that term as defined in section 3(e)(#i) of the state essential services
assessment act, 2014 PA 92, MCL 211.1053.

History: Add. 2012, Act 397, Eff. Mar. 28, 2013;—Am, 2015, Act 123, Imd. Eff. July 10, 2015,—Am. 2016, Act 110, Imd. Eif. May
6,2016—Am. 2017, Act 264, Eff. Dec. 31, 2017.

Compiler's note: Enacting section 1 of Act 397 of 2012 provides:

"Enacting section 1. Section 11a of 1974 PA 198, MCL 207.561a, as added by this amendatory act, is repealed if House Bill No. 6026
of the 96th Legislature is not approved by a majority of the qualified electors of this state voting on the question at an election to be held
on the August regular election date in 2014."

Compiler's note: HB 6026, referred to in enacting section 1, became 2012 PA 408. The act did not appear on the August 5, 2014
primary ballot.

207.562 Failure to pay tax applicable te personal property; seizure and sale of personal
property; civil action; jeopardy assessment; disbursement.

Sec. 12. (1) If the industrial facility tax applicable to personal property is not paid within the time
permitted by law for payment without penalty of taxes imposed under Act No, 206 of the Public Acts of 1893,
as amended, the officer to whom the industrial facility tax is first payable may in his own name or in the name
of the city, village, township, or county of which he is an officer, seize and sell personal property within this
state of the owner who has so neglected or refused to pay the industrial facility tax applicable to personal
property, to an amount sufficient to pay the tax, the expenses of sale, and interest on the tax at the rate of 9%
per annum from the date the tax was first payable; or the officer may in his own name or in the name of the
city, village, township, or county of which he is an officer, institute a civil action against the owner in the
gircuit court of the county in which the facility is located or in the circuit court of the county in which the
owner resides or has his or its principal place of business, and in that civil action recover the amount of the
tax and interest thereon at the rate of 9% per annum from the date the tax was first payable.

(2) The officer may proceed to make a jeopardy assessment, in the manner and under the circumstances
provided by Act No. 55 of the Public Acts of 1956, being sections 211.691 to 211.698 of the Michigan
Compiled Laws, as an additional means of collecting the amount of the tax under those circumstances.

(3) The officer may pursue 1 or more of the remedies provided in this section until such time as he has
received the amount of the tax and interest thereon and costs allowed by this act or by law governing the

Rendered Wednesday, March 7, 2018 Page 14 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 40 of 2018
© Legislative Council, State of Michigan Cotirtesy of www. legisiature.mi.gov



proceedings of civil actions in the circuit courts. The amount of the tax and interest thereon shall be disbursed
by the officer in the same manner as the indusirial facility tax is disbursed when first payable.

History: 1974, Act 198, Iimd. Eff. July 9, 1974.

Popalar name: Act 198

207.563 Tax applicable to real property as lien; automatic termination of exemption
certificate; affidavit.

Sec. '13. (1) The amount of the tax applicable to real property, until paid, shall be a lien upon the real
property to which the certificate is applicable. Except as provided in subsection (3), the tax shall become a
lien on the property on the date the tax is levied. The appropriate parties may, subject to subsection (3),
enforce the lien in the same manner as provided by law for the foreclosure in the circuit courts of mortgage
liens upon real property. :

(2) On or after the December 31 next following the expiration of 60 days after the service upon the owner
of a certificate of nonpayment and the filing of the certificate of nonpayment, if payment has not been made
within the intervening 60 days, provided for by subsection (1), the industrial facilities exemption certificate
shall automatically be terminated.

(3) The treasurer of a county, township, city, or village may designate the tax day provided in section 2 of
the general property tax act, 1893 PA 206, MCL 211.2, as the date on which industrial facility taxes become a
lien on the real or personal property assessed by filing an affidavit in the office of the register of deeds for the
county in which the real or personal property is located attesting that 1 or more of the following events have
occurred:

(2) The owner or person otherwise assessed has filed a bankruptcy petition under the federal bankruptcy
code, title 11 of the United States Code, 11 USC 101 to 1330,

(b) A secured lender has brought an action to foreclose on or to enforce an interest secured by the real or
personal property assessed.

(c) For personal property only, the owner, the person otherwise assessed, or other person has liguidated or
is attempting to liquidate the personal property assessed.

{d) The real or personal property assessed is subject to receivership under state or federal law,

{e) The owner or person otherwise assessed has assigned the real or personal property assessed for the
benefit of his or her creditors.

() The real or personal property assessed has been seized or purchased by federal, state, or local
authorities.

(g) A judicial action has been commenced that may impair the ability of the taxing authority to collect any
tax due in the absence of a lien on the real or personal property assessed.

{(4) The affidavit provided for in subsection (3} shall include all of the following:

{(a) The year for which the industrial facility taxes due were levied.

{b) The date on which the industrial facility taxes due were assessed.

{c) The name of the owner or person otherwise assessed who is identified in the tax roll.

{d) The tax identification number of the real or personal property assessed.

History: 1974, Act 198, Imd, Eff. July 9, 1974;—Am. 2004, Act 442, Imd. E£f. Dec. 21, 2004.
Popular name: Act 198

207.564 Industrial facility tax; amount of tax; determination; "industrial personal property”
defined; termination or revocation; reduction.

Sec. 14, (1) The amount of the industrial facility tax, in each year for a replacement facility, shall be
determined by multiplying the total mills levied as ad valorem taxes for that year by all taxing units within
which the facility is situated by the taxable value of the real and personal property of the obsolete industrial
property for the tax year immediately preceding the effective date of the industrial facilities exemption
certificate afier deducting the taxable value of the land and of the inventory as specified in section 19.

(2) The amount of the industrial facility tax, in each year for a new facility or a speculative building for
which an industrial facilities exemption cerfificate became effective before January 1, 1994, shall be
determined by multiplying the taxable value of the facility excluding the land and the inventory personal
property by the sum of 1/2 of the total mills levied as ad valorem taxes for that year by all taxing units within
which the facility is located other than mills levied for school operating purposes by a local school district
within which the facility is located or mills levied under the state education tax act, 1993 PA 331, MCL
211.901 to 211.906, plus 1/2 of the number of mills levied for local scheol district operating purposes in
1993.

(3) Except as provided in subsection (4), the amount of the industrial facility tax in each year for a new
Rendered Wadnesday, March 7, 2018 Page 15 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 40 of 2018

© Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legisiature.mi.gov



facility or a speculative building for which an indusirial facilities exemption certificate becomes effective
after December 31, 1993, shall be determined by multiplying the taxable value of the facility excluding the
land and the inventory personal property by the sum of 1/2 of the total mills levied as ad valorem taxes for
that year by all taxing units within which the facility is located other than mills levied under the state
education tax act, 1993 PA 331, MCL 211.901 to 211.906, plus, subject to section 14a, the number of mills
levied under the state education tax act, 1993 PA 331, MCL 211.901 to 211.906.

(4} For taxes levied after December 31, 2007, for the personal property tax component of an industrial
facilities exemption certificate for a new facility or a speculative building that is sited on real property
classified as industrial real property under section 34¢ of the general property tax act, 1893 PA 206, MCL
211.34¢, the amount of the industrial facility tax in each year for a new facility or a speculative building shall
be determined by multiplying the taxable value of the facility excluding the land and the inventory personal
property by the sum of 1/2 of the total mills levied as ad valorem taxes for that year by all taxing units within
which the facility is located other than mills levied on industrial personal property under the state education
tax act, 1993 PA 331, MCL 211.901 to 211.906, and the number of mills from which industrial personal
property is exempt under section 1211(1) of the revised school code, 1976 PA. 451, MCL 380.1211. For taxes
levied after December 31, 2007, for the personal property tax component of an industrial facilities exemption
certificate for a new facility or a speculative building that is sited on real property classified as commercial
real property under section 34c of the general property tax act, 1893 PA 206, MCL 211.34¢, the amount of the
industrial facility tax in each year for a new facility or a speculative building shall be determined by
multiplying the taxable value of the facility excluding the land and the inventory personal property by the sum
of 1/2 of the total mills levied as ad valorem taxes for that year by all taxing units within which the facility is
located other than the number of mills from which the property is exempt under section 1211(1) of the revised
school code, 1976 PA 451, MCL 380.1211. As used in this subsection, "industrial personal property” means
the following:

(a) Except as otherwise provided in subdivision (b), personal property classified under section 34¢ of the
general property tax act, 1893 PA 206, MCL 211.34c, as industrial personal property.

(b) Beginning December 31, 2011, industrial personal property does not include a turbine powered by gas,
steam, nuclear energy, coal, or oil the primary purpose of which is the generation of electricity for sale.

(5) For a termination or revocation of only the real property component, or only the personal property
component, of an industrial facilities exemption certificate as provided in this act, the valuation and the tax
determined using that valuation shall be reduced proportionately to reflect the exclusion of the component
with respect to which the termination or revocation has occurred.

History: 1974, Act 198, Imd. Eff. July 9, 1974;—Am. 1982, Act 417, Imd. Eff. Dec. 28, 1982—Am. 1993, Act 334, Eff. Apr. 1,
1994, —Am. 1994, Act 266, Eff. Imd. July 6, 1994;—Am. 1996, Act 1, Imd. Eff. Jan. 30, 19%;—Am. 2007, Act 3%, Imd. Eff. July 12,
2007—Am. 2007, Act 146, Imd. Eff. Dec. 10, 2007,—Am. 2008, Act 457, Imd. Eff Jan. 9, 2009, —Am. 2011, Act 319, Eff. Dec. 31,
2011.

Compiler's note: Act 165 of 1989, purporting o amend MCL 207.561 and 207.564, could not take effect “unless amendment 2 of
House Joint Resotution [ of the 85th Legislature becomes a part of the state constitution of 1963 as provided in section 1 of article XII of
the state constitution of 1963.” House Joint Resclution I was submitted to, and disapproved by, the people at the special election held on
November 7, 1989,

Popular name: Act 198

207.564a Reduction of mills used to calculate tax under MCL 207.564(3); exception.

Sec. 14a. Within 60 days after the granting of an industrial facilities exemption certificate under section 7
for a new Tacility, the state treasurer may exclude 1/2 or all of the number of mills levied under the state
education tax act, 1993 PA 331, MCL 211.901 to 211.906, from the specific tax calculation on the facility
under section 14(3) if the state treasurer determines that reducing the number of mills used to calculate the
specific tax under section 14{3) is necessary to reduce unemployment, promote cconomic growth, and
increase capital investment in this state. This section does not apply to the personal property tax component of
a certificate described in section 14(4).

History: Add. 1993, Act 334, Eff. Apr. 1, 1994:—Am. 1994, Act 266, Imd. Eff. July 6, 19%4;—Am. 2007, Act 3%, Imd. Eff. July 12,
2007.

Compiler’s note: For transfer of authority, powers, duties, functions, and responsibilities of the state treasurer to grant exclusions
from the state education tax to the Michigan jobs commission, see ER.Q. No. 1995-1, compiled at MCL 408.49 of the Michigan
Compiled Laws,

Popular name: Act 198
207.564b Repealed. 1994, Act 266, Imd. Eff. July 6, 1994.

Compiler's note: The repealed section pertained te determination of tax for which industrial facility exemption certificate effective.

Rendered \Wednesday, March 7, 2018 Page 16 Michigan Compiled Laws Gomplete Through PA 40 of 2018
© Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legisiature.migov



Popular name: Act 198

207.565 Revocation of exemption certificate; request; grounds; notice; hearing; order;
effective date; revocation of certificate issued for speculative building; reinstatement of
certificate.

Sec. 15. (1) Upon receipt of a request by certified mail to the commission by the holder of an industrial
facilities exemption certificate requesting revocation of the certificate, the commission shall by order revoke
the certificate in whole or revoke the certificate with respect to its real properly component, or its personal
property compenent, whichever is requested.

{(2) The legislative body of a local governmental unit may by resolution reguest the commission to revoke
the industrial facilities exemption certificate of a facility upon the grounds that, except as provided in section
7a, completion of the replacement facility or new facility has not occurred within 2 years after the effective
date of the certificate, unless a greater time has been authorized by the commission for good cause; that the
replacement, restoration, or construction of the facility has not occurred within 6 years after the date the initial
industrial facilities exemption certificate was issued as provided in section 7a, unless a greater time has been
authorized by the commission for good cause; that completion of the speculative building has not occurred
within 2 years after the date the certificate was issued except as provided in section 7a, unless a greater time
has been authorized by the commission for good cause; that a speculative building for which a certificate has
been issued but is not yet effective has been used as other than a manufacturing facility; that the certificate
issued for a speculative building has not become effective within 2 vears after the December 31 following the
date the certificate was issued; or that the purposes for which the certificate was issued are not being fulfilled
as a result of a failure of the holder to proceed in good faith with the replacement, restoration, or construction
and operation of the replacement facility or new facility or with the use of the speculative building as a
manufacturing facility in a manner consistent with the purposes of this act and in the absence of
circumstances that are beyond the control of the holder.

(3) Upon receipt of the resolution, the commission shall give notice in writing by certified mail to the
holder of the certificate, to the local [egislative body, to the assessor of the assessing unit, and to the
legislative body of each local taxing unit which levies taxes upon property in the local governmental unit in
which the facility is located. The commission shall afford to the holder of the certificate, the local legislative
body, the assessor, and a representative of the legislative body of each taxing unit an opportunity for a
hearing. The commission shall by order revoke the certificate if the commission finds that completion except
as provided in section 7a of the replacement facility or new facility has not ocourred within 2 years after the
effective date of the certificate or a greater time as authorized by the commission for good cause; that
completion of the speculative building has not occurred within 2 years after the date the certificate was issued
except as provided in section 7a, unless a greater time has been authorized by the commission for good cause;
that a speculative building for which a certificate has been issued but is not yet effective has been used as
other than a manufacturing facility; that the certificate issued for a speculative building has not become
effective within 2 years after the December 31 following the date the certificate was issued; or that the holder
of the certificate has not proceeded in good faith with the replacement, resioration, or consiruction and
operation of the facility or with the use of the speculative building as a manufacturing facility in good faith in
a manner consistent with the purposes of this act and in the absence of circumstances that are beyond the
control of the holder.

(4) The order of the commission revoking the certificate shall be effective on the December 31 next
following the date of the order and the commission shall send by certified mail copies of its order of
revocation to the holder of the certificate, to the local legislative body, to the assessor of the assessing unit in
which the facility is located, and to the legislative body of each taxing unit which levies taxes upon property
in the local governmental unit in which the facility is located.

(5) A revocation of a certificate issued for a speculative building shall specify and apply only to that
portion of the speculative building for which the grounds for revocation relate.

(6) Notwithstanding any other provision of this act, upon the written request of the holder of a revoked
industrial facilities exemption certificate to the local unit of government and the commission or upon the
application of a subsequent owner to the local governing body to transfer the revoked industrial facilities
exemption certificate to a subsequent owner, and the submission to the commission of a resolution of
concurrence by the legislative body of the local unit of government in which the facility is located, and if the
facility continues to qualify under this act, the commission may reinstate a revoked industrial facilities
exemption certificate for the holder or a subsequent owner that has applied for the transfer.

History: 1974, Act 198, Imd. Eff. July 9, 1974;—Am. 1982, Act 417, Imd. Eff. Dec. 28, 1982,—Am. 1996, Act 513, Imd. Eff. Jan.
13, 1997 —Am. 2008, Act 170, Imd. Eff. July 2, 2008:—Am. 2010, Act 122, Imd. EfY. July 19,2010
Rendered Wednesday, March 7, 2018 Page 17 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 40 of 2018

© Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www. legisiature.migov



Popular name: Act 198

#Hxk* 207.566 SUBSECTION (2) MAY NOT APPLY: See (2) of 207.566 *#***

207.566 Duration of industrial facilities exemption certificate; date of issuance of certificate
of occupancy.

Sec. 16. (1) Unless earlier revoked as provided in section 15, an industrial facilities exemption certificate
shall remain in force and effect for a period to be determined by the legislative body of the local governmental
unit and commencing with its effective date and ending on the December 31 next following not more than 12
vears after the completion of the facility with respect to both the real property component and the personal
property component of the facility, The date of issuance of a certificate of occupancy, if one is required, by
appropriate municipal authority shall be the date of completion of the facility.

{2) In the case of an application which was not filed within 12 months after the commencement of the
restoration, replacement, or construction of the facility but was filed within the succeeding 12-month period
as provided in section 9(2)(a), the industrial facilities exemption certificate, unless earlier revoked as provided
in section 15, shall remain in force and effect for a period commencing with its effective date and ending on
the December 31 next following not more than 11 years after completion of the facility with respect to both
the real property component and the personal property component of the facility. The date of issuance of a
certificate of occupancy, if one is required, by appropriate municipal authority shall be the date of completion
of the facility. This subsection shall not apply for certificates issued after December 31, 1983,

{3) In the case of an application filed pursuant to section 9(4), an industrial facilities exemption certificate,
unless earlier revoked as provided in section 15, shall remain in force and effect for a period to be determined
by the legislative body of the local governmental unit and commencing on the effective date of the certificate
and ending on the December 31 next following not more than [1 years after the effective date of the
certificate.

History: 1974, Act 198, Imd. Eff. July 9, 1974;—Am. 1976, Act 224, Imd. Eff. July 30, 1976;:—Am. 1978, Act 38, Imd. Eff Feb. 24,
—Am. 1982, Act 417, Imd. Eff. Dec. 28, 1982.

Popular name: Act 198

207.566a Industrial facilities exemption certificate; provisions.

Sec. 16a. If an industrial facilities exemption certificate for a replacement facility, a new facility, or a
speculative building becomes effective after December 31, 1995, for a period shorter than the maximum
period permitted under section 16, then both of the following apply:

(a) The owner or lessee of the replacement facility, new facility, or speculative building may, within the
final year in which the certificate is effective, within 12 months afier the certificate expires, or, as permitted
by the local governmental unit, at any other time in which the certificate is in effect apply for another
certificate under this act. If the legislative body of a local governmental unit disapproves an application
submitted under this subdivision, then the applicant has no right of appeal of that decision as described in
section 6.

(b) The legislative body of a local governmental unit shall not approve applications for certificates the sum
of whose periods exceeds the maximum permitted under section 16 for the user or lessee of a replacement
facility, new facility, or speculative building.

History: Add. 1996, Act 94, Imd. Eff. Feb. 28, 1996:—Am. 2008, Act 306, Imd. Eff. Dec. 18, 2008.

Popular name: Act 198

207.567 Assessment of real and personal property comprising facility; notice of
determination.

Sec. 17. (1) The assessor of each city or township in which is located a facility with respect to which an
industrial facilities exemption certificate is in force shall annually determine, with respect to each such
facility, an assessment of the real and personal property comprising the facility having the benefit of an
industrial facilities exemption certificate which would have been made under Act No. 206 of the Public Acts
of 1893, as amended, if the certificate had not been in force. A holder of an industrial facilities exemption
certificate shall furnish to the assessor such information as may be necessary for the determination.

(2) The assessor, having made the determination, shali annually notify the commission, the legislative
body of each unit of local government which levies taxes upon propetty in the city or township in which the
facility is located, and the holder of the industrial facilities exemption certificate of the determination,
separately stating the determinations for real property and personal property, by certified mail not later than
October 15 based upon valuations as of the preceding December 31,

Rendered Wadnesday, March 7, 2018 Page 18 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 40 of 2018
© Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.legisiature.migov



History: 1974, Act 198, Imd. Eff. July 9, 1974.
Popular name: Act 198

207.568 Rules.

Sec. 18. The commission may promulgate rules as it deems necessary for the administration of this act
pursuant to Act No. 306 of the Public Acts of 1969, as amended, being sections 24.201 to 24.315 of the
Michigan Compiled Laws.

History: 1974, Act 198, Imd. Eff. July 9, 1974.

Popular name: Act 198

Administrative rules: R 209.51 to R 209.57 of the Michigan Administrative Code.

207.569 Form and contents of exemption certificate.

Sec. 19. An industrial facilities exemption certificate shall be in the form the commission determines but
shall contain:

{a) A legal description of the real property on which the facility is or is to be located.

{b) A statement that unless revoked as provided in this act the certificate shall remain in force for the
period stated in the certificate.

(c) In the case of a replacement facility a statement of the state equalized valuation of the obsolete
industrial property, separately stated for real and personal property, for the tax year immediately preceding the
effective date of the certificate after deducting the state equalized valuation of the land and inventory.

History: 1574, Act 198, Imd. Eff. July 9, 1974.

Popular name: Act 198

207.570 Appeal.

Sec. 20. A party aggrieved by the issuance or refusal to issue, revocation, transfer, or modification of an
industrial facilities exemption certificate may appeal from the finding and order of the commission in the
manner and form and within the time provided by Act No. 306 of the Public Acts of 1969, as amended.

History: 1974, Act 198, Imd. Eff. July 9, 1974.

Popular name: Act 198

207.571 Transfer and assignment of industrial facilities exemption certificate.

Sec. 21. (1) An industrial facilities exemption certificate may be transferred and assigned by the holder of
the industrial facilities exemption certificate to a new owner or lessee of the facility but only with the
approval of the local governmental unit and the commission after application by the new owner or lessee, and
notice and hearing in the same manner as provided in section 5 for the application for a certificate.

{2) If the owner or lessee of a facility for which an industrial facilities exemption certificate is in effect
relocates that facility outside of the industrial development district or plant rehabilitation district during the
period in which the industrial facilities exemption certificate is in effect, the owner or lessee is liable to the
local governmental unit from which it is leaving, upon relocating, for an amount equal to the difference
between the industrial facilities tax to be paid by the owner or lessee of that facility for that facility for the tax
years remaining under the industrial facilities exemption certificate that is in effect and the general ad valorem
property tax that the owner or lessee would have paid if the owner or lessee of that facility did not have an
industrial facilities exemption certificate in effect for those years. If the local governmental unit determines
that it is in its best interest, the local governmental unit may forgive the liability of the owner or lessee under
this subsection. The payment provided in this subsection shall be distributed in the same manner as the
industrial facilities tax is distributed.

History: 1974, Act 198, Imd. Eff. July 9, 1974;,—Am, 1999, Act 140, Imd. Eff. Oct. 18, 1999.

Popular name: Act 198

207.572 Industrial facilities exemption certificate; requirements for approval and issuance;
application for industrial facilities exemption certificate for eligible next Michigan
business; written agreement required; remedy provision.

Sec. 22. (1) A new industrial facilities exemption certificate shall not be approved and issued under this act
after April 1, 1994, unless a written agreement is entered into between the local governmental unit and the
person to whom the certificate is to be issued, and filed with the department of treasury.

{(2) A next Michigan development corporation shall not approve an application for an industrial facilities
exemption certificate for an eligible next Michigan business without a written agreement entered inte with the
eligible next Michigan business containing a remedy provision that includes, but is not limited to, all of the

Rendered Wednesday, March 7, 2018 Page 18 Michigan Compiled Laws Complate Through PA 40 of 2018
© Legislative Ceuncil, State of Michigan Courtesy of www. legisialiire.migov



following:

(a) A requirement that the industrial facilities exemption certificate is revoked if the eligible next Michigan
business is determined to be in violation of the provisions of the written agreement.

(b) A requirement that the eligible next Michigan business may be required to repay all or part of the
benefits received under this act if the eligible next Michigan business is determined to be in violation of the
provisions of the written agreement.

History: Add. 1993, Act 334, Bff. Apr. 1, 1994:—-Am. 1994, Act 266, Eff. Imd. July 6, 1994:—Am. 2010, Act 273, Imd. Eff Dec.
15,2010

Popular name: Act 198

Rendered Wednesday, March 7, 2018 Page 20 Michigan Compiled Laws Complete Through PA 40 of 2018
© Legislative Council, State of Michigan Courtesy of www.jagisiature.mi gov



MICHI

MichiganAdvantage.org

ECONGMIC DEVELOPMEN

SORPORATION

INDUSTRIAL PROPERTY TAX ABATEMENT
(P.A. 198 OF 1974, AS AMENDED)

Industrial property tax abatements provide incentives for
eligible businesses to make new investment in Michigan.
These abatements encourage Michigan manufacturers
to build new plants, expand existing plants, renovate ag-
ing plants, or add new machinery and equipment. High-
technology operations are also eligible for the abatement.
‘High-technology activity’ is defined in the Michigan
Economic Growth Authority (MEGA) Act as: advanced
computing, advanced materials, biotechnology, elec-
tronic device technology, engineering or laboratory test-
ing related to product development, medical device tech-
nology, product research and development and advanced
vehicles technology or technology that assists in the as-
sessment or prevention of threats or damage to human
health or the environment. Abatements Under P.A. 198
can significantly reduce property taxes on new investment
for eligible firms.

ESTABLISHING THE DISTRICT

Tax benefits are granted by the legislative body of the city,
township or village in which the investment will be located.
A public hearing is held and a resolution is adopted to ap-
prove the establishment of an Industrial Development Dis-
trict (for a new project) or a Plant Rehabilitation District
(for a rehabilitation project). A written request to establish
the district must be filed with the clerk of the local unit of
government prior to commencement of construction, al-
teration or installation of equipment.

Once the district is established, the company may apply for
an abatement on property taxes (real and personal) for up
to 12 years.

APPLICATION PROCESS

Industrial property tax abatements must be approved at
both the local and state levels. The eligible business files
an application {Michigan Department of Treasury Form
1012) with the local clerk after the district has been estab-
lished and no later than six months after commencement
of the project. The local unit adopts a resolution approving
the application and determines the length of years for the

®2009 Michigan Economic Development Corporation

abatement. After a local public hearing, the application
is filed and reviewed by the State Tax Commission (STC)
and the Michigan Economic Development Corporation®*
(MEDC). The STC then grants final approval and issues
the exemption certificate. Locally approved applications
(with attachments) must be received by the STC no later
than October 31, in order to receive consideration and ac-
tion by December 31.

Applications to the STC must include an agreement signed
by the local unit and the operator of the facility outlin-
ing the conditions of the abatement. This shall include
an affidavit that no payment of any kind in excess of the
fee allowed under the Act has been made or promised in
exchange for favorable consideration of the exemption ap-
plication.

Once approved, the firm pays an Industrial Facilities Ex-
emption (IFE), instead of the property tax, that reflects the
abatement savings.

ELIGIBLE FACILITIES

Industrial plants eligible for tax abatement are those that
primarily manufacture or process goods or materials by
physical or chemical change. Related facilities of Michigan
manufacturers such as offices, engineering, research and
development, warehousing or parts distribution are also
eligible for exemption.

Research and development laboratories, high-tech facilities
and large communications centers can qualify throughout
Michigan.

Facilities used for warehousing, distribution or logistics
purposes can be eligible if they locate in specific border
counties. At least 90% of the property, excluding the sur-
rounding green space, must be used for warehousing, dis-
tribution, logistics or communications center and occupy
a building or structure that is more than 100,000 square
feet. Eligible border counties include Berrien, Branch, Cass,
Chippewa, Dickinson, Gogebic, Hillsdale, Iron, Lenawee,
Menominee, Monroe, St. Clair, St. Joseph and Wayne.

02/09



MICHI

MichiganAdvantage.org

EGONOMIC DEVELOFMENT CORPORATION

The exemption applies to buildings, building improve-
ments, machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures. Real
and personal property are eligible whether owned or leased
(provided the lessee is liable for payment of taxes on the

property).

The exemption covers only the specific project that is the
subject of the application. Any buildings and equipment
that existed prior to construction of a new facility are not
exempt. If the project is for rehabilitation, the value of any
pre-existing obsolete property is exempt from ad valorem
property taxes, but will be used as the base for the IFE. Sim-
ilarly, any structures or equipment added after completion
of the project are fully taxable.

Land is specifically excluded from the benefits of the act
and is fully taxable.

TAX IMPACT

The New Industrial Personal Property Exemption and
IFE Treatment

Under the reforms related to the Michigan Business Tax
(MBT), industrial personal property situated on industrial
parcels will automatically be exempt from the 6-mill State
Education Tax (SET) and 18 mills for local schools. The au-
tomatic exemption of 24 mills will continue after the IFE
expires. The remaining local mills will be abated 50% under
P.A. 198.

Real and Non-Industrial Personal Property IFE Treat-
ment

The IFE on a new plant and non-industrial personal prop-
erty (like high-tech personal property) is computed at half
the local property tax millage rate. This amounts to a re-
duction in property taxes of approximately 50%. In addition,
the 6-mill SET may be abated 100%, 50% or not at all. Any
SET abaterment must be negotiated with the MEDC.

@200% Michigan Economic Development Corporation

Rehabilitation of Real or Personal Property IFE Treat-
ment

For an obsolete plant or machinery that is being replaced
or restored, the IFE is frozen at the assessed value of the
plant prior to improvement. This results in a 100% exemp-
tion from property tax on the value of the improvements.

Speculative Building IFE Treatment

In order for a speculative building to qualify for abatement,
the local unit must approve a resolution declaring it as a
speculative building priot to identifying occupants. Initial
construction and finishing costs would be eligible for a re-
duction in property taxes of approximately 50%.

ADDENDUM

Personal Property Tax Relief

In addition to the automatic reduction of 24 mills on indus-
trial personal property, manufacturers are allowed to claim
a 35% tax credit on the MBT form for property taxes paid
on the same industrial personal property. The estimated
overall impact is a 65% reduction in property taxes on in-
dustrial personal property.

Commercial personal property will receive an automatic
reduction of 12 mills for local schools on their property tax

bill.

For more information, contact the MEDC Customer Assis-
tance Center at 517.373.9808.

02/09



Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)

Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Act (Industrial Facilities Exemption)

(PA 198 of 1974, as amended)

The following frequently asked questions are being provided as a service to assessors and
taxpayers to better inform them about the administration of Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended.

Nofte:

The information contained in these frequently asked questions constitutes am

analysis of one or more statutes and not legal advice. Since the analysis is limited to
general statutory requirements, individual facts may result in different conclusions being
reached. Therefore, individuals may wish to consult legal counsel.

1.

What is an Industrial Facilities Exemption?

The Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts Act, (known as the
Industrial Facilities Exemption) PA 198 of 1974, as amended, provides a tax incentive to
manufacturers to enable renovation and expansion of aging facilities, assist in the
building of new facilities and to promote the establishment of high tech facilities. An
Industrial Development District (IDD) or a Plant Rehabilitation District (PRD) must be
created prior to initiating a project so it is essential that you consult your local assessor
before commencing a project. An Industrial Facilities Exemption (IFE) certificate
entitles the facility to exemption from ad valorem real and/or personal property taxes for
a term of 1-12 years as determined by the local unit of government. Applications are
filed, reviewed and approved by the local unit of government, but are also subject to
review at the State level by the Property Services Division and the Michigan Economic
Development Corporation. The State Tax Commission (STC) is ultimately responsible
for final approval and issuance of certificates. Exemptions are not effective until
approved by the STC.

What is the difference between an Industrial Development District and a Plant
Rehabilitation District?

The main difference is that an Industrial Development District (IDD) covers only new
facility projects and a Plant Rehabilitation District (PRD) is designed primarily for
rehabilitation projects and requires a finding that 50% or more of the industrial property
within the district is obsolete. (See MCL 207.554(5).) The 50% obsolescence
requirement is measured by dividing the State Equalized Value (SEV) of the obsolete
property by the SEV of all of the properties in the district and multiplying the result by
100.

Should a Plant Rehabilitation District (PRD) include only the project that is
currently being rehabilitated?

Yes. This recommendation allows applicants to apply for additional replacement
facilities where they otherwise might not be allowed. [This is true because in order to
have a PRI, at least 50% of the properties in the rehabilitation district must be obsolete.
This is measured by dividing the State Equalized Value (SEV) of the obsolete properties
in the district by the SEV of all propertics in the district and multiplying the result by
100.]

Version 3/31/14 1



Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)
Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Act (Industrial Facilities Exemption)
(PA 198 of 1974, as amended)

In the case of a district which was created many years ago and encompassed many
separate buildings, several separate Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificates could
have been issued over the years. The result is that when the assessor calculates whether
50% of the property in the district is obsolete, there may be so many new and
rehabilitated properties that have returned to the ad valorem roll that the 50%
obsolescence requirement cannot be met.

The following procedure has been utilized to assist in identifying the exact parametet of
the project that is being replaced and the taxable value to be frozen:

a. Designate a PRD with a legal description that specifically matches the description
of the replacement portion or project to be rehabilitated in the application. The
legal description of the district will encompass only the building or portion of the
building or machinery and equipment that is being rehabilitated.

If the PRD includes more than the property currently being rehabilitated, an
exemption certificate may be granted in the future to additional properties within
the district even though the local unit objects to it.

b. Request that the assessor provide the Taxable Value (TV) of all of the real and/or
personal property contained within the boundaries of the specifically described
PRD. This figure becomes the frozen TV of the facility.

It has been the practice of the State Tax Commission (STC) to request that the
SEV/TV of the entire PRD for a rehabilitation project be frozen. Many of the
early applications involved projects in large established PRD districts where the
SEVs of the entire PRD were later found to include additional buildings/personal
property that were contained within the district and frozen but were not being
rehabilitated at the time of the application. This was at times found to be
detrimental to both the company and the local units. The detriment for companies
was that there was no allowance on frozen assessments for the depreciation of
buildings and equipment. In order to correct the frozen assessment, the company
would have to request revocation of the certificate.

4. Can a request to establish an Industrial Development District or a Plant
Rehabilitation District be denied?

Yes. A local unit can refuse to establish a district and the requestor cannot appeal that
decision. Once a district is established, a local unit cannot stop an application within the
established district from being submitted, acted upon and given the full right to the appeal
process.

5. Is there a procedure for dissolving an Industrial Development District or a Plant
Rehabilitation District?

Version 3/31/14 2



Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)
Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Act (Industrial Facilities Exemption)
(PA 198 of 1974, as amended)

Yes. Guidelines for the dissolving of a district can be found in MCL 207.554(8), which
states the following:

“A local governmental unit, by resolution of its legislative body, may
terminate a plant rehabilitation district or an industrial development
district, if there are no industrial facility exemption certificates in effect in
the plant rehabilitation district or the industrial development district on the
date of the resolution to terminate.”

6. How do I apply for an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate?

An application for the Industrial Facilities Exemption can be found at the Michigan
Department of Treasury website: www.michigan.goy/propertytaxexemptions.

File two copies of the completed application and all attachments with the clerk of the
focal governmental unit where the facility is located. You must meet the following
qualifications of the Act:

a. The facility must be located within an established Industrial Development or Plant
Rehabilitation District;

b. The applicant is a qualifying business as outlined in MCL 207.552; and

c. The application for the exemption can be prefiled, but must be filed within six
months of the commencement of the improvements,

7. Are there provisions in the application process which are time sensitive?

Yes. There are several provisions which cause the application process to be very time-
sensitive.

MCL 207.553(8)(b) provides that a speculative building must be one that is
constructed before a specific user is identified.

MCL 207.554(3) requires that the request for the establishment of a proposed
Plant Rehabilitation District (PRD) or Industrial Development District (IDD)
must be made prior to the start of construction of the property for which
exemption is being sought.

MCL 207.554(4) requires that pefore adopting a resolution establishing a PRD or
IDD the legislative body shall give written notice by certified mail to the owners
of all real property within the proposed PRD or IDD, hold a public hearing on the
proposed establishment, and grant a right to appear and be heard regarding same.

Version 3/31/14 3



Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)

Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Act (Industrial Facilities Exemption)

(PA 198 of 1974, as amended)

MCL 207.554(9) provides that before acting on a proposed resolution terminating
a PRD or IDD, the local unit shall give at least 14 days written notice by certified
mail to owners of all real property within the PRD or IDD and hold a hearing at
which those owners have a right to appear and be heard.

MCL 207.555(2) requires that before acting upon an application, the legislative
body of the local governmental unit shall afford the applicant, the assessor and a
representative of the affected taxing units an opportunity for a hearing.

MCL 207.556 requires that no more than 60 days afier the clerk’s receipt of the
application, the legislative body of the local governmental unit shall, by
resolution, either approve or disapprove the application. Further, the clerk shall
forward the approved application to the commission within 60 days of that
approval or before October 31 of that year, whichever is first. In the case of a
disapproval of the application, the applicant has [0 days after the date of the
disapproval to appeal to the commission.

MCL 207.559(2) requires that the start of construction of the facility cannot occur
more than 6 months before the filing of the application for the Industrial Facilities
Exemption Certificate with the clerk of the local unit of government.

State Tax Commission Rule No. 57 states that a complete application (with all
required attachments) received by the State Tax Commission on or before
October 31 will be acted on by the Commission before December 31 of that year.
Applications received after October 31 will be processed contingent upon staff
availability.

Can an application for an Industrial Facilities exemption Certificate (IFEC) be

denied?

Yes. An application can be denied by the local governmental unit (LGU) or by the State
Tax Commission (STC) if all of the requirements are not met by the applicant.

Can a decision of the State Tax Commission (STC) regarding an industrial facilities

Exemption Certificate (IFEC) be appealed?

Yes. MCL 207.570 states as follows:

Version 3/31/14

“A party aggrieved by the issuance or refusal to issue, revocation, transfer,
or modification of an industrial facilities exemption certificate may appeal
from the finding and order of the commission in the manner and form and
within the time provided by Act No. 306 of the Public Acts of 1969, as
amended.”



Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)
Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Act (Industrial Facilities Exemption)
(PA 198 of 1974, as amended)

PA 206 of 1969, also known as the Administrative Procedures Act (APA) provides for an
appeal to the circuit court within 60 days of the date the STC denies the application for an
IFEC. (See MCL 24.301 through MCL 24.306.)

10. Is it possible for an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate to remain in effect
for more than 12 years?

Yes. The local unit determines the number of years granted for an exemption request.
The number of years can be anywhere from 1 to 12 years with the exception discussed
below for the period of construction. If the local unit decides to grant exactly 12 years, it
should state this in the resolution, as discussed below in Example #1. If the local unit
chooses to grant the application for a period of time greater than 12 years, (i.e., 1-2 years
as partially complete and 12 years as fully completed), the local unit should use the
language discussed in Example #2 below to accomplish this.

Example #1: If the resolution states “12 years,” the ending date of the
certificate will be 12 years added to the tax day on which the exemption
becomes effective.

Example #2: If the resolution states “12 years after completion,” the
ending date of the certificate will be 12 years added to up to 2 years of
construction time. This would allow up to a 14-year exemption period.
This could be further extended if an extension of time is granted as
provided by STC Rule No. 53.

11.  What determines the starting date of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate
(IFEC)?

The starting date of the term of an IFEC is December 31" of the year the certificate is
issued by the State Tax Commission (STC). [Example: a certificate issued on November
12, 2008 would have a start date of December 31, 2008.]

12. Why is a certificate sometimes issued by the State Tax Commission (STC) for a
longer period of time than what was approved by the local unit?

There may be a variance due to the local unit’s resolution stating the number of years as
“after completion.” The resolution may be corrected any time prior to being submitted to
the STC for issuance of the certificate. After issuance, no corrections are allowed except
in the case of an extension of time to complete, as provided by STC Rule No. 53.

13.  Can the ending date of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate be changed
after it is issued by the State Tax Commission (STC)?

Yes. The statute calls for the certificate to be issued by the local unit for the number of
years it designates. The ending date is determined by the language in the resolution.

Version 3/31/14 5



14.

15.

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)

Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Act (Industrial Facilities Exemption)

(PA 198 of 1974, as amended)

Once the certificate is issued, the ending date can only be changed when one of the
following applies:

a. STC Rule No. 53, which provides for an extension of time to complete the
project.

b. MCL 207.557a which applies te facilities that exceed $150,000,000 of State
Equalized Value (SEV).

c. MCL 207.566a which applies to certificates issued after December 31, 1995, for
which the exemption period is shorter than the maximum allowed under MCL
207.566.

Can the duration of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) be
extended?

Perhaps. An IFEC can be approved for a maximum of 12 years. Local units may grant
less than the 12-year maximum term when granting exemptions based on criteria they
have adopted. (See MCL 207.566a.) Some local units allow extensions beyond the
original term granted and some do not. A local unit may state in its original resolution
the number of years being granted and include an extension provision which contains the
criteria to be used to determine whether someone qualifies for an extension. This could
be done at the start of the exemption process.

How is the tax computed for a new facility?

Real Property
The Act states that the tax computation for new facility real property is determined by

multiplying the Taxable Value (TV) of the facility by ' of the total mills other than the
State Education Tax (SET) mills levied as ad valorem taxes for that year by all of the
taxing units where the property is located plus the total SET mills, unless receiving a
100% or 50% abatement from the State Treasurer under MCL 207.564a.

Personal Property Sited on Real Property Classified as Industrial Real Property

The Act states that the tax computation for new facility personal property sited on real
property classified as industrial real property is determined by multiplying the TV of the
facility by ¥ of the total mills other than the local school district (LSD) Operating mills
and SET mills levied as ad valorem tax for that year by all of the taxing units where the
property is located, plus %2 of the Hold-Harmless mills.

Personal Property Sited on Real Property Classified as Commercial Real Property

The Act states that the tax computation for new facility personal property sited on real
property classified as commercial real property is determined by multiplying the TV of
the facility by % of the total mills (including SET mills) other than the LSD Operating
mills levied as ad valorem tax for that year by all of the taxing units where the property is

Version 3/31/14 6



Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)
Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Act (Industrial Facilities Exemption)
(PA 198 0of 1974, as amended)

located, plus ¥ of the sum of LSD Operating mills minus 12 mills, plus ¥ of the Hold-
Harmless mills.

Personal Property Sited on Real Property Not Classified as Industrial or Commercial Real
Property

The Act states that the tax computation for new facility personal property sited on real
property not classified as industrial or commercial real property is determined by
multiplying the TV of the facility by % of the total mills other than the SET mills levied
as ad valorem tax for that year by all of the taxing units where the property is located plus
the total SET mills unless receiving a 100% or 50% abatement from the State Treasurer
under MCL 207.564a.

A parcel of property holding a new Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC)
will have two assessments: the land will be addressed on the regular (ad valorem)
assessment roll that the assessor has turned over to the March Board of Review and the
building, land improvements and personal property (pertaining to the same certificate)
will have an assessment on the Industrial Facility Tax tax roll.

PA 1 of 1996 requires the assessor to calculate a Capped Value and a Taxable Value for
the building and land improvements of a parcel of real property holding a new IFEC.

Taxes on a property holding a new certificate shall be levied against the TV of the
property, not the SEV. The TV of real property which has a new certificate is calculated
the same way that TV is calculated for the non-1FT, ad valorem assessment roll.

The property’s land assessment on the ad valorem roll may be adjusted by the March
Board of Review. The IFT tax roll assessment of a new [FEC may also be adjusted by
the March Board of Review.

16. How is the tax computed for a “replacement facility”?

The Act states that the tax computation for a replacement facility is determined by
multiplying the total mills levied as ad valorem taxes by the Taxable Value (TV) of the
real and/or personal component of the obsolete industrial property for the tax year
immediately preceding the effective date of the certificate.

A parcel of property holding a “rehabilitation” Industrial Facilitics Exemption Certificate
will have two assessments. The land will be assessed on the regular (ad valorem)
assessment roll that the assessor has turned over to the March Board of Review. The
building, land improvements and personal property (pertaining to the same certificate)
will have an assessment on the Industrial Facility Tax (IFT) tax roll. The taxes on
properties holding a “rehabilitation” or “replacement™ certificate shall be levied against
TV.

Version 3/31/14 7



17.

18.

19.

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)

Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Act (Industrial Facilities Exemption)

(PA 198 of 1974, as amended)

The TV of a property on the IFT tax roll with a “rehabilitation” or “replacement”
certificate is the amount of the TV of the real and/or personal property for the tax year
immediately preceding the effective date of the certificate. That amount is frozen until
the exemption certificate expires.

The TV of a property on the IFT tax roll with a “rehabilitation” or “replacement”
certificate which began PRIOR to 1995 will still be the same as the frozen SEV for the
property until the exemption certificate expires. The TV of a property covered by a
rehabilitation or replacement certificate which began in 1995 or AFTER will be the same
as the frozen TV for the property until the exemption certificate expires.

The property’s land assessment on the ad valorem roll may be adjusted by the March
Board of Review. The IFT tax roll assessment of a property with a rehabilitation or
replacement certificate cannot have its assessment altered by the Board of Review during
the term of the certificate.

Can a 1% Administration Fee be added to an Industrial Facility Tax (IFT) tax roll?

Yes. Per MCL 207.561, Section 11(1), the 1% Administration Fee can be added to an
IFT tax roll.

Why are the dollar amounts on some Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificates
(IFEC) different from what was applied for?

If the dollar amounts on a certificate are different from what was applied for, it may have
been changed by Property Services Division (PSD) staff due to one of the following
reasons:

a. The application was filed more than 6 months after the start of construction of real
property or the start of installation of personal property. Sce also Question #10.

b. Some of the equipment was existing equipment which is ineligible for exemption
as new property. See also Question #11.

c. Used equipment was purchased from another manufacturing company, not from a
broker of used equipment. See also Question #11.

d. The application involves leased property but the property tax liability is not held
by the applicant. In other words, the applicant is not responsible for direct
payment of taxes to the local unit. See MCL 207.552(6).

What happens when an incomplete application for an Industrial Facilities
Exemption Certificate (IFEC) is received?

Version 3/31/14 g



20.

21.

22,

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)

Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Act (Industrial Facilities Exemption)

(PA 198 of 1974, as amended)

The applicant will be contacted to submit the required items. If the required items are not
submitted within 30 days, the application may be dismissed as inactive.

What types of equipment qualify as new industrial property as defined in MCL
207.552(4)?

The State Tax Commission (STC) has interpreted the term “new industrial property” to
mean new to the tax base in Michigan. Following this interpretation, the following would
be considered new industrial property:

a. New equipment purchased from an equipment manufacturer.
b. Used equipment never before located in Michigan.
C. Used equipment purchased from a broker of used equipment with the rationale

that because the prior owner is a broker, the equipment has lost its status as
existing equipment in Michigan as it has become inventory.

The following would not qualify as new industrial propetty:
a. Existing equipment already in the possession of the applicant.
b. Existing equipment in the possession of another Michigan company.

Can an application for an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) include
equipment/devices which are also going to be submitted for an Air or Water
Pollution Control Exemption?

Yes. It is recommended that all new equipment and machinery be included in the IFEC
application so that the equipment and machinery meet the timeline requirements of PA
198 of 1974, as amended. The same equipment can then also be submitted for an Air or
Water Pollution Control Exemption. If all of the property does not qualify as exempt Air
or Water Pollution Control equipment, the remainder may then qualify for the IFEC
exemption. Refer to the Air or Water Pollution Control Exemption FAQs for more
information.

Can a real property replacement facility include more floor space than the original
obsolete facility?

Yes. MCL 207.552(3) states that a replacement facility can consist of either replacement
or restoration. MCL 207.553(5) defines “replacement” as:

«..the complete or partial demolition of obsolete industrial property and
the complete or partial reconstruction or installation of new property of
similar utility.”

Version 3/31/14 9



Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)
Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Act (Industrial Facilities Exemption)
(PA 198 of 1974, as amended)

“Replacement” usually involves the construction of a new building or a part of a
building. “Restoration” is defined in MCL 207.553(6) as:

“... changes to obsolete industrial property other than replacement as may
be required to restore the property ... to an economically efficient
functional condition.”

When replacement includes additional floor space, it can still be a replacement facility,
provided that the building does not exceed the size of the original building by more than
10%. If the replacement building exceeds the size of the original by more than 10%, the
additional space must be treated as a new facility. The tax on a new facility is calculated
differently from the tax on a replacement facility." When restoration includes more floor
space than the original building, ALL of the additional floor space is treated as a new
facility.

23.  Why are some projects approved by the State Tax Commission (STC) as new
facilities even though they were submitted as rehabilitation facilities?

Tf an application was submitted as a rehabilitation facility project but was approved as a
new facility, it may be due to one of the following reasons:

a. The description of the investment undertaken did not speak to restoration and/or
replacement of a functionally obsolete facility involving major improvements
such as roof, windows, plumbing, heating, code compliances, etc.

b. The Plant Rehabilitation District (PRD) in which the project is located no longer
qualifies as a PRD because at least 50% of the properties in the district are no
longer obsolete. Therefore, only new facilities can be located within the district.

C. The district established was an Industrial Development District (IDD) in which
only new projects are allowed, not a PRD.

d. The local unit’s resolution approving the request approved a new facility project,
not a rehabilitation project.

24.  Can leased equipment qualify for an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate?
Yes, under the following conditions:

1. The length of the lease must be as long as or longer than the length of the
certificate to be granted.

! See MCT. 207.564 regarding the calculation of the industrial facility tax for new and replacement facilities.

Version 3/31/14 10



25.

26.

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)

Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Act (Industrial Facilities Exemption)

(PA 198 of 1974, as amended)

2. The lessee must have the tax liability for the length of the certificate to be granted.
(Any indication that the taxes are being paid “as additional rent” is not
acceptable.)

Can an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) be transferred to a new
owner?

Yes. MCL 207.571 states as follows:

“An industrial facilities exemption certificate may be transferred and
assigned by the holder of the industrial facilities exemption certificate to a
new owner or lessee of the facility but only with the approval of the local
governmental unit and the commission after application by the new owner
or lessee, and notice and hearing in the same manner as provided under
section 5 for the application for a certificate.”

Once the application for transfer has been presented to the local unit, they must review
the application and issue a decision after a review of the prerequisites and qualifications
contained in MCL 207.559. If the local unit denies the application, the applicant may
appeal to the State Tax Commission (STC), pursuant to MCL 207.556. If the local unit
approves the application, the STC must make a decision pursuant to MCL 207.557. If the
local unit disapproves the application and the taxpayer files an appeal with the STC
within 10 days, the STC shall review the facility to determine if it meets the
qualifications in MCL 207.559. If the STC denies the approval, the applicant may appeal
pursuant to the Administrative Procedures Act (APA).

The STC has allowed a shortened procedure for transfers when they involve a name
change only. This is the case when the ownership remains exactly the same and the
activity at the facility remains the same. The only change is in the name of the owner.
Certain mergers and restructuring may also qualify for this shortened procedure. Please
contact the Tax Exemption Section at (517) 373-2408 with questions regarding transfers
involving a name change, mergers, and restructurings.

Company “A” has an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate that was issued a
year ago. They have purchased new equipment that qualified for exemption. Is it
more advantageous to add this new equipment to the existing Exemption Certificate
or apply for a new exemption certificate for this equipment?

As long as the new equipment is purchased within the two-year post construction period
from the effective date of the original issuance of the certificate, the equipment may be
added by amending the existing certificate. If the new equipment purchase is closer to
the end of the two-year post construction period from the effective date of the original
issuance of the certificate, it may be more advantageous to apply for a new certificate for
this equipment thereby attaining a greater number of years of exemption than could be
gained by an amendment.

Version 3/31/14 11



27.

28.

29.

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)

Plant Rehabiljtation and Industrial Development Act (Industrial Facilities Exemption)

(PA 198 of 1974, as amended)

Is there a limit on the amount of time that an applicant can take to complete a
project?

Yes. MCL 207.565 states that a certificate can be revoked if the project has not been
completed in a two-year time period from the issuance of the certificate. STC Rule No.
53 allows for a one-year extension of time to complete a project. If a resolution is
received by the State Tax Commission (STC) and it does not specifically state that the
local unit is granting a three-year construction completion period, the assumption is made
that the local unit is only granting a two-year construction completion period. Companies
may obtain a third year to complete construction through a resolution by the local
governmental unit granting a one-year extension of time as outlined in STC Rule No. 53.
Upon receipt of a request for an extension, the local unit may: (a) deny the request; (b)
approve the request with no change in the ending date of the certificate issued; or (c)
approve the extension of time for the completion of the project and a revised ending date
on the certificate. Depending upon the outcome at the local level, the request for an
extension of time for the completion of a project shall be filed with the commission by
the certificate holder and shall be accompanied by a resolution of approval adopted by the
local governmental unit. Please see MCL 207.557a for the construction period of a
facility whose cost will exceed $150,000,000 of state equalized value.

What happens when the cost or the size of the project turns out to be greater than
what was stated on the original application?

The Property Services Division (PSD) staff distinguishes between an increase in costs
versus an amendment to the project. For example, if the original application listed 10
computers at a total cost of $20,000, but it turns out that the 10 computers cost a total of
$25,000 that is an increase in costs. However if the original application listed 10
computers at a total cost of $20,000 but it turn out that 20 computers were purchased at a
total cost of $40,000, that is determined to be an amendment.

If there is an increase in costs of the project that exceeds the original approved amount by
10% or less, it is not necessary for the local unit to approve the new amount. If the
increase is greater than 10%, the procedures in STC Rule No. 54 must be followed. STC
Rule No. 54 states that the certificate holder shall request that the local governmental unit
approve the revised cost if greater than 10% over the original approved amount. If the
local unit approves the revised cost, the holder of the certificate shall request that the
commission issue a revised certificate. The request shall be accompanied by a copy of
the resolution of approval adopted by the local governmental unit.

When additional real and/or personal property components are added, an amendment to
the project has occurred, and regardless of the dollar amount of the additional propetty, it
must be approved at the local level and ultimately by the STC.

Can an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) be revoked? If yes, who
holds the authority to do so?

Version 3/31/14 12



30.

31.

32.

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)

Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Act (Industrial Facilities Exemption)

(PA 198 of 1974, as amended)

Yes. MCL 207.565 provides for the revocation of an IFEC. MCL 207.565(1) addresses
requests for revocations initiated by the holder of the certificate. MCL 207.565(2)
addresses requests for revocation initiated by the local governmental unit and includes
specific reasons why a certificate may be revoked. In ecither case, only the State Tax
Commission (STC) has the authority to revoke a certificate.

A party aggrieved by a revocation by the STC may appeal the revocation under the
provisions of the Administrative Procedures Act (APA). The APA provides that a
request for a rehearing of an STC decision should be filed, in writing, within 60 days
from the date the STC mailed the notice of revocation.

In a related matter, MCL 207.563(2) provides for automatic termination of an IFEC when
the Industrial Facility Tax on real property has not been paid. Please see MCL 207.563
for the procedure to be followed.

When does the revocation of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC)
take effect?

The revocation of an [FEC is effective the December 31 of the year in which the State
Tax Commission (STC) revoked the certificate.

If a company announces that it will cease operations in the coming year, will the
State Tax Commission (STC) approve the revocation of that company’s Industrial
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for the tax day prior to the actual cessation
of operations?

No. In a recent case matching these circumstances, the STC ruled that an IFEC could not
be revoked as of December 31, 1997 even though it was announced during 1997 that
operations would cease as of February, 1998.

Is there a limit to the application fee that may be charged by a local unmit of
government for the cost of processing the application for an Industrial Facilities
Exemption Certificate (IFEC)?

Yes. MCL 207.555(3) specifically limits the amount of an exemption certificate
application fee that may be charged by a unit of local government to the lesser of the
actual cost of processing the application or 2% of total property taxes abated during the
term that the exemption certificate is in effect and specifically prohibits local units of
government from charging applicants any other [ee.

Iocal units may not require, as a condition precedent to approving an IFEC application,
that applicants make or promise to make payments to the local unit. Whether referred to
as fees, payments in lieu of taxes, donations, or another name, such payments are

Version 3/31/14 13



Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)
Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Act (Industrial Facilities Exemption)
(PA 198 of 1974, as amended)

contrary to the legislative intent of PA 198 of 1974. [See STC Bulletin 3 of 1998, at
www.michigan.gov/propertytaxexemptions].

33.  What is the definition of “Industrial Property”?
MCL 207.552(6) defines “Industrial Property” as:

land improvements, buildings, structures, and other real property and
machinery, equipment, furniture, and fixtures or any part or accessory
whether completed or in the process of construction comprising an
integrated whole, the primary purpose and use of which is:

a. the engaging in a high-technology activity;

b. operation of a strategic response center;

c. operation of a motorsports entertainment complex;

d. operation of a logistical optimization center;

e. operation of a qualified commercial activity;

f. operation of a major distribution or logistics facility;

g. the manufacture of goods or materials;

h. creation of synthesis of biodiesel fuel;

i, the processing of goods and materials by physical or chemical
changez;

g property acquired, constructed, altered, or installed due to the

passage of Proposal A in 1976;

k. the operation of a hydroelectric dam by a private company other
than a public utility;

1. agricultural processing facilities;

m. facilities related to a manufacturing operation under the same

ownership, including but not limited to, office, engineering,

2 “Manufacture of goods or materials™ or “processing of goods or materials” means any type of operation that would
be conducted by any entity included in the classifications provided by Section 31-33 — Manufacturing, of the North
American Industry Classification System — United States (1997), published by the Office of Management and
Budget, regardless of whether the entity conducting that operation is included in that manual.

Version 3/31/14 14



Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)
Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Act (Industrial Facilities Exemption)
(PA 198 of 1974, as amended)

research and development, warchousing, or parts distribution
facilities;

n. research and development laboratories of companies other than
those companies that manufacture the products developed from
their research activities;

0. research development laboratories of a manufactuting company
that are related to the products of the company;

p. an electric generating plant that is not owned by a local unit of
government, including, but not limited to, an electric generating
plant fueled by biomass, if the application is approved by the
legislative body of a local governmental unit between June 30,
1999 and December 31, 2007;

q. convention and trade centers in which construction begins not later
than December 31, 2010 and is over 250,000 square feet in size or,
if located in a county with a population of more than 750,000 and
less than 1,100,000 is over 100,000 square feet in size or, if located
in a county with a population of more than 26,000 and less than
28,000, is over 30,000 square feet in size;

. a federal reserve bank operating under 12 USC 341, located in a
city with a population of 750,000 or more.

Note: Industrial property may be owned or leased. However, in the case of leased
property, the lessee must be liable for payment of ad valorem property taxes and shall
furnish proof of the liability.
Industrial property does not include any of the following:
a. land;
b. property of a public utility other than an electric generating plant
that is not owned by a local unit of government for which an
application was approved by the legislative body of a local
governmental unit between June 30, 1999 and December 31, 2007;
or

C. inventory.

34. What is the definition of “obsolescence™?

Vetsion 3/31/14 15



35.

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)

Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Act (Industrial Facilities Exemption)

(PA 198 of 1974, as amended)

The assessor must make a recommendation to the local governing unit that 50% or more
of the property to be contained in a Plant Rehabilitation District (PRD) is obsolete.
“Obsolete industrial property” is defined in MCL 207.552(7) as:

“... industrial property the condition of which is substantially less than an
economically efficient functional condition.”

“Economically efficient functional condition” is further defined in MCL 207.552(8) as:

“ .. a state or condition of property the desirability and usefulness of
which is not impaired due to changes in design, construction, technology,
or improved production processes, or from external influencing factors
which make the property less desirable and valuable for continued use.”

The following are examples of the restoration of obsolete industrial property from MCL
207.553(6):

Restoration includes major renovation including but not necessarily
limited to the improvement of floor loads, correction of deficient or
excessive height, new or improved building equipment, including heating,
ventilation, and lighting, reducing multistory facilities to 1 or 2 stories,
improved structural support including foundations, improved roof
structure and cover, floor replacement, improved wall placement,
improved exterior and interior appearance of buildings, improvements or
modifications of machinery and equipment to improve efficiency,
decrease operating costs, or to increase productive capacity, and other
physical changes as may be required to restore the industrial property to an
economically efficient functional condition, and shall include land and
building improvements and other tangible personal property incident to
the improvements.

When the planned improvements are less than 10% of the true cash value of the industrial
property, the improvements are considered delayed maintenance and not considered
restoration. (MCL 207.553(6).)

What are some of the special provisions that apply to speculative buildings?
MCL. 207.553(8) defines a “speculative building” as:
“Speculative Building means a new building that meets all of the
following criteria and the machinery, equipment, fumiture, and fixtures

located in the new building:

a. the building is owned by or approved as a speculative building by
resolution of a local governmental unit in which the building is

Version 3/31/14 16



36.

37,

38.

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)

Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Act (Industrial Facilities Exemption)

(PA 198 of 1974, as amended)

located or the building is owned by a development organization
and located in the district of the development organization.

b. the building is constructed for the purpose of providing a
manufacturing facility before the identification of a specific user of
that building.

c. the building does not qualify as a replacement facility.”

Subsection 8(b) requires that a speculative building be constructed before a specific user
is identified. This law does not require that a building be approved by the local
governmental unit before identification of the specific user.

The following are additional requirements specific to speculative buildings:

a. that the speculative building was constructed less than 9 years before the filing of
the exemption certificate.

b. that the speculative building has not been occupied since the completion of
construction.

Important note: [t is sometimes advantageous to divide a speculative building into
several smaller units rather than having the entire building as one unit. (e.g., if a 50,000
square foot building is designed to be occupied by 5 separate users, but it is only
approved as a single speculative building, after the first user takes occupancy, the
building may no longer qualify as speculative for future occupants because it may no
longer qualify under paragraph b, above.}

Where can 1 find information regarding the Industrial Facilities Exemption
Certificate (IFEC) application process?

Information regarding the application process can be found on the Department of
Treasury website at: www.michigan.gov/propertytaxexemptions.

Where can I obtain copies of previously issued Industrial Facilities Exemption
Certificates?

Copies of certificates acted upon by the State Tax Commission after January 1, 2013, are
available on the Department of Treasury website at:
www.michigan.gov/propertytaxexemptions . Choose the exemption program under
which the certificate was issued. Within the “Certificate Activity” link, the certificates
are listed according to the date they were acted upon.

Where can I check on the status of an Industrial Facilities Exemption application?

Version 3/31/14 17



Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ)
Plant Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Act (Industrial Facilities Exemption)
(PA 198 of 1974, as amended)

The status of an application is available through a query tool on the Department of

Treasury website at: www.michigan.gov/propertytaxexemptions . Choose the Industrial
Facilitics Exemption (IFE) program. Then select the Industrial Facilities

Application/Certificate Search link,

Version 3/31/14 18



AGENDA NOTE

New Business: Item # @

MEETING DATE: March 12,2018

PERSON PLACING ITEM ON AGENDA: Councilmember Kurtzweil
AGENDA TOPIC: Search for Interim City Manager
EXPLANATION OF TOPIC:

MATERIALS ATTACHED AS SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS: Examples of other
community ads for Interim City Manager search

POSSIBLE COURSES OF ACTION: Discussion and action

RECOMMENDATION:

SUGGESTED MOTION: Motion by , supported by
to




ﬁ Holland

MICHIGAN

City Manager

With the retirement of longtime City Manager, Soren Wolff, Holland is now accepting
applications for the position of City Manager.

The City Council has established a search committee and has retained the services of
the Mercer Group to assist in the hiring process. An advertisement of the position and
link to a full position profile can be found here,

If you are interested in applying for this position, please send a resume; cover letter
that demonstrates how your qualifications, interests, and experience coincide with this
position; detailed salary history; and, if desired, a request for confidentiality pursuant
to MCL 15.268({h) by November 14, 2011, to Phillip Robertson, The Mercer Group, Inc.,
MercerNC@aol.com {electronic submission preferred) or mail to 3443 Hwy. 39 North,
Louisburg, NC 27549. The City of Holland is an equal opportunity employer.

Position

City Manager

Reference #

Status

Closed - no longer accepting applications




City Manager

Contact Us

City E-News

Hotland Annual Report
Weekly Report

West Michigan Regional Airport Authority

Department Contact Information

City Manager's Office

Located on the 2nd Floor of Holland City Hall
270 South River Avenue

Holland, Michigan 49423

Click here for full contact info

Department Events

Allegan County & Ottawa County Monthly Constituent Meeting
Mon, Mar 5th 5:30pm
City Hall, Council Chambers, 1st Floor

Allegan County & Ottawa County Monthly Constituent Meeting
Mon, Apr 2nd 5:30pm
City Hall, Council Chambers, 1st Floor

270 S. River Avenue Holland, Ml 49423 616-355-1300

Home Login  Sitemap LEP  StaffLinks  Title VI

2f&] f

Select Language | ¥

Site Design by Aha Consulting



Michigan

Nine executive search firms make proposals to
help find the next Muskegon city manager

x By Dave Alexander [ dalexanl@miive.com
Follow on Twitter
on April 06, 2013 at 2:31 PM, updated April 06, 2013 at 2:32 PM

MUSKEGON, MI — Nobody knows where the next Muskegon city manager will come from, but companies wanting to help in that
executive search come from Texas, Florida and Georgia.

The city of Muskegon has received nine proposals from executive search consultants looking to help the Muskegon City
Commission select a new city manager after City Manager Bryon Mazade retires Oct. 1.

The proposals — in response to a city “request for proposals” - ranged in price from $12,500 to $24,000. All of the companies
responding were from outside of Michigan, except for the proposal from the Michigan Municipal League. which offered one of the
lowest prices.

However, several of the companies have extensive experience with Michigan municipalities as they have conducted the city
manager searches for Kalamazoo, Grand Rapids, Holland and other Michigan cities.

The Muskegon City Commission has the city manager search proposals on its Monday work session agenda. Commissioners
meet at 5:30 p.m. at Muskegen City Hall, 933 Terrace.

Here are the proposals the commissioners will begin to consider:

- Strategic Government Resources, Keller, Texas. The company has 300 clients in 40 states but no references from Michigan. It's
fee is not to exceed $24,000.

» Bob Murray & Associates, Tallahassee, Fla. Murray did the search for the Kalamazoo city manager and has filled 800 public
sector positions, including 200 city managers. Professional fees and expenses would be $24,000.

» Colin Baezinger & Associates, Wellington, Fla. The company has conducted more than 120 city and county manager searches
but all of its references are outside of Michigan. The fixed fee would be $21,500.

« Slavin Management Consultants, Norcross, Ga. Its clients include the cities of Kalamazoo, Grand Rapids, Ann Arbor and
Traverse City. The company has placed more than 750 local government executives. The fee is $13,865.

» Michigan Municipal League, Lansing. The municipal government nonprofit asseciation's clients include the cities of Norton
Shores and Muskegon Heights among 125 across the state. The project manager would be Bill Baidridge, a former city manager
fiving in North Muskegon. The cost would be $12,500 plus expenses for an overall estimated cost of less than $15,000.

« Anchor HR Solutions, Fredericksburg. Va. This company lists its clients as the New York City Housing Authority to the federal
Library of Congress and It has done corperate work for companies like Nike, MetLife and JPMorganChase. The fee would not
exceed $18,500.

» Voorhees Associates LLC, Deerfield, 1ll. The company currently has 17 searches underway and has filled 180 positions since
2009, All of its references were for city manager searches in the Chicago suburbs. The fee would be $16,400.

» The Waters Consulting Group, Dallas. This company conducted the most recent Grand Rapids city manager search and has had
200 placements made throughout the country. The total cost would be $21,500.



+ The Mercer Group, Atlanta and Raleigh, N.C. This company has done extensive work in Michigan including the recent city
manager searches in Holland and Troy along with past work in Jackson and Petoskey. It has completed more than 250 executive
saarches. The fee would be $19,900.

Commissioners at the Monday work session are expeacted to set the direction for hiring a company to help them find a new city
manager.

Mazade, 54, announced earlier this year that he Is taking an early retirement. He has been the city manager for nearly 20 years
and leaves a city with financial and political stability.

Email: dalexanl@milive.com

Facebook: Dave Alexander

Registration on or use of this site constitutes acceptance of our User Agreement and Privacy Policy

® 2018 MLive Media Group. All rights reserved (About Us).
The material on this site may not be reproduced, distributed, transmitted, cached or otherwise used, except with the prior written permission

of MLive Media Group.
Community Rulas apply to all content you upload or otherwise submit to this site.

> Ad Choices



MARCH 12, 2018

BUDGET DISCUSSION ITEM



CHARTER TownsHiP oF HIGHLAND

205 North John Street » Highland, Michigan 48357  (248) 887-3791

Resolution #12-17:

To Adopt a Fund Balance Policy

At a regular meeting of the Charter Township of Highland Board of Trustees held on the 10th day
of October, 2012,

Present: Patricia M. Pilchowski, Mary L. McDonell, Judith A. Kiley, Mary Pat
Chynoweth, Raymond Polidori, Barry Sherman, Russ Tierney

Absent: MNone

The following resolution was offered by Mr. Polidori and supported by Mrs. Kiley:

Whereas, the Charter Township of Highland believes that sound financial management
principles require sufficient funds be retained by the Township to provide a stable financial base at
all times, and

Whereas, In order to do so, the Township needs to maintain a fand balance sufficient to fund all
cash flows of the Township, to provide for financial reserves for unanticipated one-time expendituzes,
revenue shortfalls and/or emergency needs, and

Whereas, the Township Board needs to identify the size and composition of the Township’s
desired fund balance for governmental funds and to identify certain requirements for classifving fund
balance in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 54, Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmentol Fund Type Definitions,

Therefore be it resotved that Highland Township’s Fund balance will be displayed in the
following classifications:

Non-spendable fund balance—amounts that are not in a spendable form (such as inventory) or
are required to be maintained intact

Restricted fund balance—amounts constrained to specific purposes

Unrestricted:

Committed fund balance—amounts constrained to specific purposes by the board, as
recommended by the Supervisor; to be reported as committed; amounts cannot be used for any
other purpose unless the board takes the same highest-level action to remove or change the
constrain

Assigned fund balance—amounts the board irfends to use for a specific purpose.

SUPERVISOR: Patricia M. Pilchowski + CLERK: Mary L. McDonell e TREASURER: Judith A. Kiley
TRUSTEES: Raymond P. Polidori, Mary Pat Chynoweth, Russ Tiemey, Batry Sherman



Unassigned. balance—amounts that are available for any purpose (these amounts are
reported only in the general fund),

And let it be Further resolved that the goal of the board shall be to maintain a minimum
unassigned fund balance of no less than 40% of General Fund expenditures. For purposes of this
calculation, “expenditure” will be the annual budgeted expenditures amount less non-recurring capital
expenditures, If unassigned fund balance levels fall below 40% of expenditures, the General Fund budget
for the following year will be adjusted to restore fund balance to the 40% level. If unassigned find
balance approaches a level that greatly exceeds 60% of expenditures, the Township Board will consider
using unassigned fund balance for the following purposes: funding OPEB Trust, pay down future debt
(drains/bonds), transfer funds to Capital Projects fund for future Capital Improvements and other future
obligations of the Township. Fund balance levels will be analyzed each fiscal year after the financial
statement andit.

RESOLUTION DECL. ADOPTED

low Ll

Paincm M. Pilchowski, Supervisor

777%{0?’277

Mary If/McDonell, MMC, Township Clerk

1 hereby certify that the above is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted by the Charter Township of
Highland Board of Trustees of the County of Oakland, State of Michigan on the 10™ day of October, 2012,

Mary L., onell, MMC, Township Clerk



RESESESESEIES NSRS TR VR SETE S PR SR SRV P RSN U 0N U DA SR R S USSR RN U2

Chapter 4: Sample Fund Batance Policy

Fund Balance

420 Fund Balance
The township board believes that sound financial management principles require that sufficient

funds be retained by the township to provide a stable financial base at all times. in order ta do so,
the township needs to maintain a fund balance sufficient to fund all cash flows of the township, to
pravide for financial reserves for unanticipated one-time expenditures, revenue shortfalls, andfor

emergency needs.

The purpose of this policy is to identify the size and composition of the township’s desired fund
balance for governmental funds and to identify certain requirements for classifying fund balance
in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Na. 54, Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions.

1. Classifications The following individual components shall constitute the fund balance for all of the
township’s governmental funds;

Classification Definition Exampies
Non-spendable | Amounts that cannot be spent because they are either ;  Inventories
{a) not in spendable form or (b} legally or contractually |  Prepald items
raquired to be maintained intact, « Long-term receivables
Restricted Fund balance shouid be reported as restricted when « Restricted by state statute
constraints placed on the use of resources are either: | * Unspent bond proceeds
a. Externally impased by creditors (such as + Grants earned but not
through debt covenants), grantors, spent
contributors, or laws or regulations of other = Taxes dedicated to a
governments; or specific purpose
b. imposed by law through constitutional = Revenues restricted by
provisions or enabiing legislation. enabling legislation.
Committed | Used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints = Amounts the township
imposed by formal action of the government's highest | board sets aside by
level of decision-making authority. To be classified as | resolution.
“cormmitted,” formal action must be taken by the
township board prior to of that fiscal
- vear.
% Assigned Amounts that are constrained by the government’s « Township board delegates
= intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither ! the authority to assign fund
g restricted nor committed. These amounts can be bafance to the
£ “assigned” by * Futyre roads, non-
> motorized transportation
are examples.
Unassigned | Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund. This is
fund balance that has not been reported in any other classification. The general fund
is the only fund that can report a positive unassigned fund balance. Other
governmental funds would report deficit fund balances as unassigned.

53




Chapter 4: Sample Fund Balance Policy

Committing Fund Balance In order to commit fund balance, the township board, as the highest level
of decision-making authority, must pass a resolution to commitment funds for a specific purpose.
These funds must be fully expended for their committed purpose. To make cormitted funds
uncommitted, a new resolution must be passed by the board. Action must be taken before the last
day of the fiscal year to commit funds for that year.

Assigning Fund Balance In order to assign fund balance, the township board designates the
(indicate responsible party) as the authority to assign fund balance. :

2. Levels of Fund Balance The township wilt establish and maintain levels of fund balance forthe
general fund as follows:

The goal of the township board shall be to maintain a minimum unassigned fund balance
of no less than __% of general fund expenditures. For purposes of this calculation,
“aypenditures” will be the annual budgeted expenditures amount less non-recurring capital
expenditures. If unassigned fund balance levels fall below __ % of expenditures, the general
fund budget for the following year will be adjusted to restore fund balance to the __% level.

if unassigned fund balance approaches a level that greatly exceeds % of expenditures, the
township board will consider using unassigned fund balance for the following purposes: pay
down future debt (drains/bonds), transfer funds to capital projects fund for future capltal
improvements, and other future obligations of the township.

Fund balance levels will be analyzed each fiscal year after the financial statement audit
{typically in (indicate month)).

Note
Townships typically accumulate fund balance or surpluses through careful controls over spending and
conservative approaches to revenue. Many townships accurnulate resources to pay for capital projects, and
to provide a contingency fund for unplanned expenditures or revenue shortfalls. Townships should consider
adopting a more formalized approach to maintaining fund balance reserves. A township board may want to
consult with its auditor or ather financial advisor to develop a target fund balance for the township's specific
circumstances and needs.

Starting with 2010 fiscal years, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 54 created
five new classifications for fund balance reporting, and clarified the definitions of existing fund types. According
to the GASB Fact Sheet about Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions:

"Fund balance will be displayed in the fotlowing classifications depicting the relative strength of
the spending constraints pluced on the purposes for which resources can be used:

» Nonspendable fund balance—amounts that are notina spendable form (such as inventory) or
are required to be maintained intact (such as the corpus of an endowment fund)

o Restricted fund balance—amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as
grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, o
by enabling legislation

» Committed fund balance—amounts constrained to specific purposes by a government itself,
using its highest level of decision-making authority; to be reported as committed, amounts
cannot be used for any other purpose unless the government takes the same highest-level
action ta remove or change the constraint

54

-—— ——— —— P ) I'\j



Chapter 4: Sample Capital Improvement Planning Policy

» Assigned fund balance—amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose; intent
can be expressed by the governing body or by an official or body to which the governing body
delegates the authority

» Unassigned fund balance—amounts that are available for any purpose; these amounts are
reported only in the general fund.”

In establishing a policy govemning the level of unassigned fund batance in the general fund, the Government
Finance Officers Assaciation recommends that a township consider a variety of factors, including:

* The predictability of its revenues and the volatility of its expenditures

s ts perceived exposure to significant ane-time outlays (such as disasters, immediate capital
needs, state budget cuts, etc.)

» The potential drain upon general fund resources from other funds, and the availability of
resources in other funds

* Liguidity
» Commitments and assignments

55



| s
Lloyd Collins j’/’,\/ﬂo 0/” _

From: Timothy Wilhelm <twilhelm®@jrsjlaw.com> PR
Sent: Wednesday, March 07, 2018 4:54 PM

To: Lloyd Collins i
Subject: South Lyon - follow up an proper public expenditure issue from 2/26 meeting
Attachments: DOC030718.pdf

Chief Collins

During the February 26, 2018 Council meeting a question arose regarding the propriety of city expenditures, specifically
whether it is proper for the city to spend funds on park improvement or a memorial plaque located and maintained in a
city park. | have attached Section 4 — Finance, Chapter 23: Limits on Municipal Expenditures from the Handbook for
Municipal Officials, published by MML, which provides basic information regarding the topic. In short, expenditures of
city funds for park purposes, including memorials or similar improvements (such as Paul Baker Park), would be proper
and allowed. The circumstances discussed on February 26™ do not involve a private purpose or benefit and such
expenditures all relate to improvements to a city park.

If you or Council would like further information on this issue, please let me know.

Timothy 5. Wilhelm

JIRISIY

Johnson, Rosati, Schultz & Joppich, P.C.
27555 Executive Drive, Suite 250
Farmington Hills, M| 48331

Phone: (248) 489-4100; Fax: {248) 489-1726
Email: twilhelm@jrsjtaw.com

Website: www.jrsilaw.com

The Information contained in this communication is intended for the use of the recipient named above and contains confidential and legally privileged information. If
the reader of this communication is not the intended recipient, do not read, copy, disseminate or distribute it. You are hereby notified that any dissemination,
distribution, or copying of this communication, or any of its contents, is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please re-send this
communication to the sender and delete the original message and any copy of it from your computer system. If you need any additional information, please contact

the sender at (248} 4859-4100. Thank you.



Section 4: Finance

Chapter 23: Limits of Municipal
Expenditures

Municipalities are frequently requested
to make donations to various worthy private
organizations. Such organizations include
chambers of commerce; hospitals; museums;
veterans® organizations; community funds;
Bay Scouts, Red Cross; and other
educational, promotional, or benevolent
associations. Frequently, it is difficult for the
legislative body of a municipality to refuse
such requests, However, it appears clear
from Michigan law that such donations are
questionable expenditures of public funds.

Generalty, a municipality’s power to
spend money is derived from the state
through the Michigan Constitution and state
laws. In addition to specific grants of power,
cities and villages with home rule authority
ate also able to rely on the applicable
provisions in the Constitution and statutes
for the power to spend on municipal
concerns, Regardless of the authority, it is
generally held, however, that municipalities
have the power to expend funds only for a
public purpose.

One test for determxmng a public
purpose is whether the expenditure confers a
direct benefit of reasonably general
~ character to a significant part of the public.
It should be noted that the public purpose
test has also been limited to the provision of
services for which municipalities exist and
the powers they have authority to exercise.
With respect to the question raised, neither
the Michigan Constitution nor state law
grants to municipalities the power to spend
public money on employee parties, gifts, etc.
Nor can a good argument be made that the
expenditures are for a public purpose.
Absent a grant of spending authority, and no
clear public purpose defined, the
expenditure is most likely illegal, Simply
put, a municipality cannot give publnc funds
away. :

What Is a Public Purpose?

‘The Michigan Supreme Court has defined
the objective of a public purpose:

Generally a public purpose has for
its objective the promotion of the public
health, safety, morals, general welfare,
security, prosperity, and contentment of
all the inhabitants or residents within the
municipal corporation, the sovereign
powers of which are used to promote
such public purpose....The right of the
public to receive and enjoy the benefit
of the use determines whether the use is
public or private. (Hays v City of
Kalamazoo, 316 Mich 443, 453-454
(1947)

The foliowing questions may be helpful
in determining whether an expenditure is

~ appropriate;

1. Isthe purpose specifically granted by
the Michigan Constitution, by statute,
ot by court decision?
Is the expenditurc for a public purpose?
Is the municipality contracting for
services that the municipality is legally
authorized to provide? -
4, Is the operation or service under the

direct control of the municipality?

H you can answer “yes” to these

questions, the expenditure is most likely

appropriate.

Michigan Constitution of 1963

The following provisions of the Michigan
Constitution are the basis for municipal
expenditures:

Article 7, Sec, 26,

Except as otherwise provided in this
constitution, no city or village shall have
the power to loan its credit for any
private purpose or, except as provided
by law, for any public purpose.

bl o

Handbook for Municipal Officials
Published by the Michigan Municipal League, July 2015

98




Limits of Municipal Expenditures

Article 9, Sec. 18.

The credit of the state shall not be
granted to, not in aid of any person,
association or corporation, public or
private, except as authorized in this
constitution. (Note: This applies to all
political subdivisions of the state, Black
Marsh Dralnage District v Rowe, 350
Mich 470 (1958)).

Private Purpose Decisions

. Expending public funds for a private

purpose under Michigan law is illegal. For

over a century, the Michigan Supreme Court
has considered the Hmitations on expending
public funds and has been consistent in its

rulings. Most involve the relationship of a

municipality with private businesses.

1. A contract in which the village of
Fenton proposed to expend $1200 to
drain a marsh, improve a highway, and
construct a dock in order to induce a
certain firm to establish a stavemill in
the village, was held invalid, Clee v
Sanders, 74 Mich 692 (1889).

2. Money from a bond issue could not be
spent if it appeared that the purpose of
the bond issue was actually to provide a
fund for paying bonuses to industry for
locating in the cify. Bates v Hastings,
145 Mich 574 (1906).

3. A city-owned building, which was
occupied by a manufacturing company,
burned down, The city agreed o pay the
insurance proceeds to the manufacturer
if it would rebuild the building and
occupy it for a term of years. The
rebuilding, however, was not done on
the city-owned property. It was held that
payment of the $5,000, even though not
raised by tax money, was unlawful,
MeMarnus v Petoskey, 164 Mich 390
(1911).

Public Purpose—but Outside Municipal
Contirol
Most of the above cases involve a
purpose which is worthy, but private in
nature, There is another line of cases that
involves an additional concern. If the
purpose for which the funds are expended is

public in nature, but the operation is not
under the control of the city or village which
is making the contribution, it may
nonetheless still be an illegal expenditure.

In Detroit Museum of Art v Engel, 187
Mich 432 (1915) the Supreme Court ruled
that Detroit could not pay the salary of the
museum director, even though the city had
title to the real estate on which the museunm
was located and had minority representation
on its board of directors. One sentence of the
opinion which has been much quoted is:

The object and purpose of relator is
a public purpose in the sense that it is
being conducted for the public benefit,
but it is not a public purpose within the
meaning of our taxing laws, unless it is
managed and controlled by the public.

In more recent cases the Art Museum
doctrine has been applied on a limited basis.
Hays v City of Kalamazoo, 316 Mich 443
(1947) involved the validity of the payment
of membership fees by Kalamazoo to the
Michigan Municipal League. The court
distinguished the Art Museum case by
saying that, contrary to the payment of dues
to the League, the transaction with the
Museum did not “involve the right of a
municipality to avail itself of, and to pay for,
information and services of benefit to the
city in its governmental capacity.”

In 1957, the Michigan Supreme Court
held that Detroit could properly transfer to
Wayne County certain city park land to
facilitate the construction of a home for
neglected and abandoned children, In
sustaining the right of the city to assist the
project in the manner indicated, the court
noted that two-thirds of the population of the
county resided in the city of Detroit, and that
the proposed institution would provide care
for children from within the city. The court
held that the city was aiding in the
accomplishment of a purpose that it might
itself have accomplished directly uader its
charter. Brozowskl v City of Detrolt, 351
Mich 10 (1957).

Handbook for Municipal Officials
Published by the Michigan Municipal League, July 2015

99




Section 4/Chapter 23

Opinions of the Attorney Generat

There are numerous opinions by the

Attorney General regarding municipal

expenditures, The following are offered as

examples,

¢ Money raised under the special tax for
advertising can be used to advertise the
city’s advantage for factory location, but
not to buy land to be given for a factory,
to build a factory for sale or.rent, or to
give a bonus for locating a factory in the
city (1927-28 AGO p. 672).

+ Ina park owned by the American
Legion which had instalied a lighting
system and held ball games open to the
public, it would be unlawful for a
village to assume the cost of the
electricity used by the park up to $100
per year, even though the majority of the
village taxpayers had signed a petition
requesting such payment (1935-36 AGO
p.5).

Expansion of Public Purpose

The Attorney General has said that a county
may not use federal revenue sharing finds to
make a grant to a private nonprofit hospital
(1973 AGO No. 4851). The Attorney
General concluded that since it could not
expend its own funds as confemplated, it
could not disburse federal funds for that
purpose. The Attorney General suggested
that the county might obtain social service
and medical service needs by confract. Ina
later opinion the Attorney General
concluded a county could not expend federal
revenue sharing funds for loans to private
businesses unless the federal statute
expressly authorized such expenditure (1987
AGO No. 6427).

Considerable use has been made of the
authority to contract with private nonprofit
agencies to perform services on behalf of a
city or village. 1977 AGO No, 5212
specifically recognized the validity of this
procedure, The state legistature
subsequently amended section 3 (j) of the
Home Rule City Act as follows:

In providing for the public peace,
health, and safety, a city may expend
funds or enter into contracts witha

private organization, the federal or state
government, a county, village, township,
or another city for services considered
necessary by the municipal body vested
with legislative power. Public peace,
health, and safety services may include,
but shalt not be fimited to, the operation
of child guidance and community
mental health clinics, the prevention,
counseling, and treatment of
developmental disabilitics, the
prevention of drug abuse, and the
counseling and treatment of drug
abusers, 1978 PA 241,

In addition, there have been other
expansions of a municipality’s spending
power with respect to a downtown
development authority, MCL 125.1651 et
seq. (1975 PA 195); public economic
development corporation, MCL 125.1601 et
seq, (1974 PA 338); empowerment Zone
development corporation, MCL 125.2561 et
seq. (1995 PA 75); enterprise community
development corporation, MCL 125.2601 et
seq. (1995 PA 123); and brownfield = -
redevelopment financing, MCL 125.2651 et
seq. (1996 PA 381), Each law allows money
and resources to be used for economic
growth under the control or oversight of the
municipality’s governing body.

Specific Authorizations Granted by Law
As a public decision maker, you have a legal
duty to make sound financial decisions.
Whenever a question arises that does not
easily match statutory law, or meet the
public purpose analysis, the expenditure is
likely improper. Remember, if the question
cannot be resolved, your village attorney is
the best resource for legal advice. You may
also wish to consult the state of Michigan
Department of Treasury website
{treas.state.mi,us/localgov/Audit/
lawfulex.htm) for guidelines.

Statutory Aunthorizations for Expenditure

Listed below are several specific statutory

authorizations for public expenditures:

¢ Cuitural activities (Home Rule City
Act). MCL 117.4k.

s Water supply authority, MCL 121.2,

100

Handbook for Municipal Officials
Published by the Michigan Municipal League, July 2015




Limits of Municipal Expenditures

Public wtility. MCL 123.391.
Exhibition area, MCL 123.651.
Memorial Day/Independence
Day/Centennial celebrations. MCL
123.851.

Band. MCL 123.861,
Publicity/Advertising. MCL 123.881.
Principal shopping district.
MCL125.981.

Handbook for Municipal Officials
Published by the Michigan Municipal League, July 2015

101




CONSERVE & PROTECT OUR WATER WAYS

"Community Service for Young and Young at Heart"

{Removing trash and debris from area creeks and streams). Plan on mud and water.
Date: April 14, 2018 Time: 9AM - 1PM

Place: Michigan Seamless Tube and Pipe Truck Lot, 400 McMunn
Street, South Lyon, Michigan

"It May be Cold and the Water Will be High"
Please Bring: rubber boots, gloves, rakes and shovels
Do Not Forget: warm clothing, hats, and sunscreen

Also Needed: pick-up trucks and trailers to haul trash to dumpster (for
- city trash only)

Sponsored by: Machagan Seamless Tube and

Pipe, South Lyon Area Boy Scouts, and the City
of South Lyon Department of Public Work’s

Storm Water Management Planning Program

Covid ot

Larey
Ledbatie



